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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholder, Supervisory Board, Board of Directors and to the Audit Committee of Slovensky
plynarensky priemysel, a.s..

Report on the Audit of the Separate Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the separate financial statements of Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s. (‘the
Company'), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2020, income statement, statement
of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and notes to the separate financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying separate financial statements of the Company give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2020, and of its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by EU ('IFRS EU').

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (15SAs’). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Separate Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Act on Statutory Audit No 423/2015 Coll. and on amendments to the Act on
Accounting No 431/2002 Coll., as amended by later legislation (‘the Act on Statutory Audit’) related to
ethics, including Auditor's Code of Ethics, that are relevant to our audit of the separate financial
statements, and we have fulfilled other requirements of these provisions related to ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Separale Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the separate financial statements that give true and
fair view in accordance with IFRS EU, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of separate financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the separate financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Separate Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the separate financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order fto design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the separate financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the separate financial statements
including the presented information as well as whether the separate financial statements
captures the underlying transactions and events in a manner that leads to their fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Report an Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Report on Information Disclosed in the Annual Report

Management is responsible for the information disclosed in the annual report, prepared based on
requirements of the Act on Accounting No 431/2002 Coll., as amended by later legislation (‘the Act on
Accounting’). Our opinion on the separate financial statements expressed above does not apply to other
information contained in the annual report.

In connection with audit of the separate financial statements it is our responsibility to understand the
information disclosed in the annual report and to consider whether such information is not materially
inconsistent with audited separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit of the
separate financial staterments, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

We considered whether the Company's annual report contains information, disclosure of which is
required by the Act on Accounting.

Based on procedures performed during the audit of separate financial statements, in our opinion:

- Information disclosed in the annual report prepared for 2020 is consistent with the separate financial
statements for the relevant year,

- The annual report contains information based on the Act on Accounting.

Additionally, based on our understanding of the Company and its situation, obtained in the audit of the
separate financial statements, we are required to disclose whether material misstatements were
identified in the annual report, which we received prior to the date of issue of this auditor's report. In this
regard, there are no findings which we should disclose.

19 March 2021
Bratislava, Slovak Republic

Ernst & Young Slovakia, spol. s r.o.
SKAU Licence No. 257

/f—)
i :,_ S

Ing. Dalimil Draganovsky, statutory auditor
SKAU Licence No. 893
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Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.
BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019

(EUR '000)
31 December 31 December
Note 2020 2019
ASSETS:
MON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investment property B 23939 24 262
Land, property, plant and equipment 7 a6 404 67 770
Investments in subsidiaries and associated companies 5] 2026 562 2 026 562
Mon-current intangible assets 9 11 966 11 267
Other non-current assets 9 566 5612
Total non-current assets 2 138 437 2 135 473
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 10 93 452 199 B62
Receivables and prepavmeants 11 280 798 354 263
Income tax assets 25.1 = 5391
Cash and cash equivalents 247 869 172 956
Total current assets 622 11% 732 512
Assets held for sale 4 385 4 378
TOTAL ASSETS 2 764 041 2 B72 363
EQUITY AMD LIABILITIES:
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Registerad capital 18 BBS D62 BEB5 D62
Legal and other reserves 19 1197 569 1197 522
Hedging reserve 19 19 135 {50 514}
Retained earnings 19 399 997 390 917
Total equity 2501 763 2 422 987
MOMN-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Man-current interest-bearing borrowings 14 - -
Deferred income 15 22 23
Provisions 13 35 882 37 387
Retirerment and other long-term employes benefits 12 1070 1070
Other nen-current labilities 1& 7 B0E B 894
Total non-current liabilities 44 580 47 378
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 17,16 206 162 206 285
Tax liabilities from income tax 251 770 =
Short-term loans 14 1373 B4 909
Provisions and other current liabilities 13 10 203 20 804
Total current liahilities 218 598 401 958
Total liabilities 263 178 449 370
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2 ?54 941 2 B72 363

The financial statements on pages 4 to 48 were signed on 10 March 2021

Directors:

&

Milan Urban
Chairman of the Board of Directors

n behalf of the Board of

Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors

and Chief Executive Officer

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the separate financial statements.
I'his is an English language translation of the original Slevak language document.




Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.

INCOME STATEMENT

Years ended 31 December 2020 and 21 December 2019
(EUR '000)

Note

Revenue from contracts with customers 20
Cther gains and losses
Own work capitalised
Purchases of natural gas, electricity, consumahles and

services
Depreciation and amortisation 7.8,9
Storage of natural gas and other services
Personnel expenses 21
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts, net 11
Pravisions and impairment losses, net 13
Operating profit
Investment income 22
Finance costs 23

Profit before income taxes
INCOME TAX 25

MET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

E_I"IL accampanying notes form an mfegral part of the separate financial statements,
This is an English language translation of the original Slovak language document.

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
1206 633 1119118
10 791 12 594
1587 1 794
(1 098 920) [1 0B2 349}
(7 423) {7 918)
(82 642) (103 830)
(28 302) (28 427)
4 323 (12 161}
549 {2 962)
6 596 (104 141)
268 576 340 927
_ {2070) (3 689)
273 102 233 097
{14 022) {12 162)
259 D8O 220 935
G



Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019
(EUR '000)

Year ended
Note 31 December

MET FROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (may be reclassified to profit 26
or loss in the future):
Cash flow hedging
Deferred tax related to items of other comprehensive income
for the period

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (not reclassified to profit or 20
Iass in the future):
Change in the liability for employee benefits
Defarred tax related to items of other comprehensive income
for the period

OTHER NET COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD

TOTAL NET COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD

2020

259 080

6% 649

47

69 696

328 776

Year ended
31 December
2019

220 935

(25 647)

(35
{25 682)

195 253

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the separate financial statements,
This is an English language translation of the original Slovak language document,
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Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019

{EUR "000) - x
Year ended Year ended
Note 31 December 31 December
20120 2019
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash flows from operating activities 27 156 049 (148 584)
Interest paid (3 532) (3 571)
Interest recelved 178 5565
(Income tax paid)/refund of tax overpayments (7 861) (14 764
Met cash flows from operating activities (144 834) (166 354)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from provided borrowings - -
Expenditure on financial investments 4 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {4 190} (2 507)
Proceeds from the sale of land, property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets 7 8
Dividends received £ 20 906
Met cash inflow/{outflow) from investing activities, net (4 183) 27 407
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Procesds from interest-bearing borrowings 269 790 340 386
Expenditures for the repaymeant of interest-bearing
borrowings (85 000) -
Dividends paid 19 (250 000) {376 000)
Payment of principal pertion of lease liabilities 16 (510} (458
Other proceeds and expenditures from financial activities, net (40 49)
Met cash flows from financing activities (65 FB0) (36 121)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE)} IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS . 74 891 (175 DaB)
EFFECTS OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE FLUCTUATIONS (18} B
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINMNING OF THE
PERIOD 172 996 348 D56
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE
PERIOD 247 B69 172 996
Non-cash Non-cash
2 Dze;f;:-her Cash flow change — change — 31 ﬂ;;;g’ bar
proceeds offset
Dividends received - ¥ (268 417) 268 417 -
Short-term loan 269 790 = {268 417) 1373
Total liabilities from financing
activities 269 790 (268 417) - 1373
Non-cash Non-cash
31 D;;Ieg?ber Cash flow change - change — 1 D;;f;mer
proceeds offset
Dividends received {29 906) 29 906 [340 386) 340 386 -
Short-term Ioan - 340 386 {340 386} 5
Total liabilities from financing
activities {29 906) 370 292 (340 386) = =
_The HCL‘(}rnp.n.l',..rlllg notes fnJI'I.Ti an integral part of th_E' saparate financial statements, 'j

I'his is an English language translation of the original Slovak language document.



Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020
(EUR '000)

1. GENERAL
1.1. General Information

Slovensky plyndrensky priemysel, a.s. (“SPP") was founded on 21 December 1988 by
a Memorandum of Association as a 100% state-owned enterprise in the Slovak Republic. On 1 July 2001,
SPP was transformed into a joint-stock company (akciova spoloénost) that was 100% owned by the
Mational Property Fund of the Slovak Republic. The Government of the Slovak Republic became the 100%
owner of SPP in 2014,

SPP is the largest and most important Slovak energy supplier. In the area of gas supply, it directly follows
the 165-year tradition of the Slovak gas industry and since 2012 it has also been operating on the
electricity supply market. SPP guarantees reliable, safe and competitive gas and electricity supplies and
related services in all regions of Slovakia, The company successfully supplies natural gas and electricity to
more than 1.2 millien consumption points. In addition to energy supply, SPP also provides energy services
and energy smart solutions, At the same time, SPP also acts as an electricity purchaser in support of the
production of electricity produced from renewable energy sources and high-efficiency combined
production.

SPP is 100% owner of the company SPP CZ, a.s. with registered address in the Czech Republic, whose
main business activity is the purchase and sale of natural gas and electricity. At the same time, SPP is also
100% owner of the company S5PP CNG s.r.o., which sells compressed natural gas. SPP also owns 51% non-
controlling interest In the company SPP Infrastructure, a.s. (see Note 6).

These financial statements represent the separate financial statements of SPP. They were prepared for the
reporting peried from 1 January to 31 December 2020 in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EL.

Identification number [IffD} & 35 815 256
Tax identification number (DIC) 2020259802

The Annual General Meeting approved the 2019 financial statements of SPP on 28 February 2020,

1.2. Principal Activities

Since 1 July 2006, after the legal unbundling process, SPP has been selling natural gas and electricity.

1.3. Employees

The average number of SPP employees for the year ended 31 December 2020 was 677, of which 7
represented the executive management (for the year ended 31 December 2019: 683, of which 2

represented the executive management).

The actual number of full-time employees as at 31 December 2020 was 685 (as at 31 December 2019:
679).

1.4. Registered Address
Miynské nivy 44/a

825 11 Bratislava
Slovak Republic

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the separate financial statements, 10
This is an English language translation of the original Slovak language document,



Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

(EUR *000)

2. NEW INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND CHANGES IN ESTIMATES
Application of New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standards

The Company has adopted all of the new and revised standards and interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) of the IASE that have been endorsed for use in the European Union (hereinafter the
"EU"), and that are relevant to its operations and effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January
2020,

Initial application of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and new
interpretations effective for the current reporting period

The following standards and amendments to the existing standards and new interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by the EU are effective for the current
reporting period:

« Amendments to References to the IFRS Conceptual Framework - adopted by the EU on
29 November 2019 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020},

« Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” and IAS 8 “Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” - Definition of term "Significant” -
adopted by the EU on 29 November 2019 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020},

« Amendments to IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, IAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” and IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” -
Reference interest rate reform — adopted by the EU on 15 January 2020 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020},

« Amendments to IFRS 3 "Business Combinations” - Definition of a Business - adopted by the EU
on 21 April 2020 (related to business combinations for which the acquisition date is first or any
subsequent day in the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 and to asset
acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that period),

« Amendments to IFRS 16 “Leases” Covid 19 - adopted by the EU on 9 October 2020 (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020).

The adoption of these standards and amendments to the existing standards and new interpretations has
not led to any material changes in the Company's financial statements.

Standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations issued by IASB and
adopted by the EU, but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following new standards and amendments to
existing standards and interpretations issued by TASB and adopted by the EU are not yet effective:

« Amendments to IFRS 4 “Insurance contracts” - adopted by the EU on 15 December 2020
{effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021),

+ Amendments to IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, IAS 39 "“Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” , IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”, IFRS 4
"Insurance contracts” and IFRS 16 “Leases” - Reference interest rate reform - Phase 2 -
adopted by the EU on 13 January 2021 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after L January
20213).

The Company has elected not to adopt these new standards and amendments to the existing standards
and new interpretations in advance of their effective dates. The Company anticipates that the adoption of
these new standards, amendments to the existing standards and new Interpretations will have no material
impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application,

The accompanying noles form an integral part of the separate financial statements. 11
This Is an English language translation of the original Slovak language decument.



Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

(EUR '000)

New standards and amendments to the existing standards issued by IASB but not yet adopted
by the EU

At present, IFRS as adopted by the EU do not significantly differ from regulations adopted by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) except for the following new standards, amendments to
the existing standards and new interpretations, which were not endorsed for use in the EU as at the
reporting date {effective dates stated below are for IFRS in full);

« IFRS 14 “"Regulatory Deferral Accounts” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016) - the European Commission has decided not to launch the endorsement process of
this interim standard and to wait for the final standard;

« IFRS 17 "Insurance Contracts” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023);

=  Amendments to IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements” - Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current - postpenement of the effective date (effective for annual periods beginning
an or after 1 January 2023);

* Amendments to IFRS 3 "Business Combinations”, IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”,
IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” and amendments to
various standards due to "IFRS quality improvement project (cycle 2018 - 2020)" -
resulting from the annual IFRS quality improvement project, the main aim of which is to eliminate
inconsistencies and clarify the wording {effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022);

= Amendments to IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28 "Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures” - Sale or Contribution of Assets bebween an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture and further amendments (effective date deferred indefinitely until the
research project on the equity method has been concluded),

The Company anticipates that the adoption of these standards and amendments to the existing standards
will have no material impact on the Company’s financial statements in the period of initial application.

Hedge accounting for a portfolio of financial assets and liabilities whose principles have not bean adopted
by the EU remains unchanged.

According to the Company’s estimates, the application of hedge accounting to a portfolio of financial assets
or liabilittes pursuant to IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” would not
significantly impact the financial statements if applied as at the balance sheet date.

The accompanying notes form an |r1i.ugrdl part of the separate financial Ht;bterner';t.s. 12
This is an English language translation of the original Slovak language document.



Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.

MOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

(EUR '000)

3. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Basis of Accounting

The separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU. IFRS
relevant for SPP as adopted by the EU currently do not significantly differ from LFRS as issued by the IASB,

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the certain financial
instruments. The principal accounting policies adopted are detailed below. The reporting and functional
currency of SPP is the euro (EUR). The separate financial statements were prepared under the going-
concern assumption,

SPP will prepare and issue consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 that
comply with IFRS as adopted by the EU. The consolidated financial statements are issued separately and
do not accompany these separate financial statements. For a better understanding of the Company’s
consolidated financial position and results of operations, reference should be made to the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

b) Subsidiaries and Associated Companies

Investments in subsidiaries and associated companies are recognised at acquisition cost. The cost of the
investment in a subsidiary is based on the costs attributed to the acquisition of the investment, which
represents the fair value of the consideration given and directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequently, investments in subsidiaries and assoclated companies are measured at cost less
impairment. In accordance with IAS 36, the Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is
evidence that such investments may be impaired.

Impairment of non-monetary assets

Assets with indefinite useful lives are not depreciated; however, they are tested for impairment each year.
Depreciated assets are assessed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be realisable. As regards the impairment of financial investments in
subsidiarics or associated companies, the Company assesses whether the carrying amount of an
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount of the net assels of an
investee recognised in the consolidated financial statements including the corresponding goodwill, or
whether the dividends received exceed the total aggregate profit of the subsidiary or associated company
in the period the dividends are awarded. An impairment loss is recognised in the amount by which the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its realisable value. The realisable value is the higher of the fair value
of an asset less costs of sale, or the value in use. To assess impalrment of assets, assets are claszified into
groups at the lowest levels for which separately identifiable cash flows {cash-generating units) exist.
Impaired non-monetary assets, except for goodwill, are assessed at each reporting date to determine
whether the impairment can be derecognised or not,

c) Financial Assets

The Company recognises and classifies financial assets in accordance with IFRS 9 “Financial Instrument”
which superseded 1AS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” with effect from 1
January 2018,

Financial assets are classified in the following categories: Financial assets subsequently measured at
amortised cost, financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FWYOCI) and financial assels at fair value through profit or loss (FWTPL).

Although the permitted measurement of financial assets at amortised cost, al Tair value through other
comprehensive income and at fair value through profit or loss is similar to the IAS 39 measurement, the
criterla for classification to the corresponding categories are different,

The Company recognises financial assets subsequently measured at amortised cost and financial assets at
fair value throuagh profit or loss,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the separate financial statements, 13
This is an English language translation of the original Slovak language decument.



Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

(EUR "000)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

i} The assets are held in a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

i) The contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is either held for trading or designated
as at FVYTPL.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising
on remeasurement recognised in profit or less. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset. Financial assets classified as at FVTPL
mainly include agreements on the purchase or sale of commodities not meeting the measurement
exception under IFRS 9 and financial derivatives concluded to ensure economic hedging to which the
hedge accounting was not applied.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for current receivables when
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

For the impairment of loan receivables, the Company applies a three-stage model of excepted credit losses
(ECL). Under this model, an immediate impairment loss in an amount equal to a 12-month expected credit
loss is recognised upon the initial recognition of the financlal assets. If there is a significant increase of the
credit risk, a provision is estimated based on expected credit losses for the full lifetime of financial assets,
not only based on the 12-month expected credit loss.

For trade receivables and current receivables, the Company applies a simplified model for the assessment
and recognition of impairment losses on financial assets under which a provision is recognised of expected
credit losses over the full lifetime of trade receivables at the moment of their initial recognition. Such
estimates are revised as at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through a provision
account. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the provision account,
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the provision account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the provision account are recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
assel expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

d) Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at "fair value through profit or loss” (FVTPL) or
as “other financial liabilities",

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through profit or loss when the financial liability held for
trading is either a derivative instrument or it is designated as at FVTPL,

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Finance costs' line in profit or
loss,
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Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest gains and losses on the translation of forelgn currencies are recognised
in the income statement.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities only when the Company's cbligations are met, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the consideration paid
and the amount payable is recagnised in the income statement.

e) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company enters into a number of derivative contracts in order to manage the risk of changes in
commodity prices, interest rates and the foreign exchange risk, including forward currency contracts and
interest rate and commodity swaps and other derivative contracts, eg. futures.

Derivative financial instruments are contracts: (i) whose value changes in response to a change in one or
mare identifiable variables; (i) that require no significant net initial investment; and (ili) that are settled at
a certain future date. Derivative financial instruments, therefore, include swaps, futures, and firm
commitments te buy or sell non-financial assets that include the physical delivery of the underlying assels,
excepl for contracts intended for their own use (the so-called own use exemption).

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of
the hedge relationship.

Hedge accounting

The Company designates hedging instruments that include derivatives, embedded derivatives and non-
derivatives in respect of foreign currency risk as either fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of
net investments in foreign operations. Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are
accounted for as cash flow hedges,

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging
instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for
undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongaing
basis, the Company documents whether the hedging instrument Is highly effective in offsetting changes in
fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised
in profit or loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the hedging instrument and the
change in the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in profit or loss in the line item
relating to the hedged item,

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Company revokes the hedging relationship, when the hedging
Instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when It no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.
The fair-value adjustment to the earrying amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk is
amortised to profit or loss from that date.
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In the event that a financial derivate does not meet or no longer meets the requirements for hedge
accounting, changes in the fair value are directly recognised in the income statement as "Mark-to-market”
or as "Mark-to-market on commodity contracts other than trading instruments” in ordinary operating
income from derivative financial instruments with non-financial assets as the underlying assets, and in
financial revenues or expenses in the case of currency, interest rate or equity derivatives. Derivative
financial instruments used by the Company for trading activities with own energy and energy on behaif of
customers, and other derivative financial instruments that are due in less than 12 months are recognised
in the statement of financial position as current assets or current liabilities, while derivative financial
instruments due after this period are classified as non-current items.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and gualify as cash
flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow
hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are recognised
as follows:

» If an expected hedged transacton subsequently leads to the recognition of a non-financial asset or
a non-financial liability, or if a forecast hedged transaction with a non-financial asset or a non-financial
liability becomes a firm commitment, the amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income are
derecognized and directly included in the initial measurement of such an asset or a liahility,

= For other instances, amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income are reclassified from
the hedging reserve to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged itern is recognized in profit or loss in
the same income statement line as the recognized hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Company revokes the hedging relationship, when the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no lenger qualifies for hedge accounting.
Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss,
When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is
recagnised immediately in profit or loss.

f) Land, Property, Plant and Equipment, and Intangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment {"non-current assets”) and intangible assets were recognised at cost net of
accumulated depreciation as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019. Cost includes all costs
attributable to placing the non-current asset into service for its intended use,

Items of non-current assets that are retired or disposed of for another reason are derecognised from the
balance sheet at the net book value. Any gain or loss resulting from such retirement or disposal is included
in the income statement.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated

useful lives. Depreciation is charged to the Income statement computed so as to amortise the cost of the
non-current assets to their estimated residual values over their residual useful lives.

The useful lives of non-current assets used are as follows:

2020 2019
Bulldings 30 - 40 30 - 40
Right of use of leased premises 5-10 5 =10
Flant and machinery 3-15 3-15
Right of use of vehicles 5 5
Inventory 8-15 8=15
Software - tangible 3-4 3I-4
Other non-current tangible assets B 8
Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite useflul life.
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the separate financial staterments., 16
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Intangible assets with limited useful lives that are acquired separately are recognised at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Estimated useful lives are re-assessed at
the end of each reporting period.

The useful lives of intangible assets can be summarised as follows:

2020 2019
Software 4 - 10 4 =10
Other non-current intangible assets 4 =10 4 -10

At each reporting date, an assessment is made as to whether there is any indication that the realisable
value of the Company’s non-current assets Is less than the carrying amount. When such an indication
oceurs, the realisable value of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
the present value of future cash flows (“value-in-use”), is estimated. The resulting impairment loss
provision is recognised in full in the income statement in the year in which the impairment occurs. The
discount rates used to calculate the present value of the future cash flows reflect the current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In the event that a decision is
made to abandon a construction project in progress or significantly to postpone its planned completion
date, the carrying amount of the asset is reviewed for potential impairment and a provision recorded, if
appropriate,

Expenditures relating to an item of non-current assets after being placed into service are added to the
carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of the original
assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will low to the enterprise. All other expenditures
are treated as repairs and maintenance and are expensed in the period in which they are incurred,

a) Investment Property

Investment property that is held to generate income from a lease is initially recegnised at cost inclusive of
costs related to acquisition. They are subsequently recognised at histerical cost. The Company does not
apply any revaluation model for such assets.

h) Research and Development

Costs of research and development are charged to expenses except for expenses incurred for development
projects that are recognised as non-current intangible assets of an expected economic benefit.
Development costs that were expensed in the year in which they were incurred are not subsequently
capitalised in the following reporting periods.

i} Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of natural gas stored in
underground storage facilities and raw materials is calculated using the weighted arithmetic average
methad. The cost of natural gas and raw materials includes the cost of acquisition and related costs, and
the cost of inventories developed internally includes materials, other direct costs, and production
overheads. Other costs related to the acquisition of natural gas also include the effect of hedging. The
positive impact of hedging, i.e. profit from the settlement of derivative operations, reduces the valuation of
natural gas in the underground storage facilities and vice versa, the negative impact of hedging, i.e. loss
from the settlement of derivative operations increases the valuation of natural gas in the underground
storage facilities.

A provision in the required amount is recorded for inventories if there is an indication of their impairment.
The Company separately recognises natural gas held for trading, which is remeasured to fair value as at
the reporting date. Changes in the fair value of natural gas held for trading are recognised directly in profit
or loss.

il Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and cash in bank, and highly liquid securities with
insignificant risk of changes in value and original maturities of three months or less from the date of issue.
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k) Dividends

Dividends are recognised in equity in the period in which they were approved. The payment of dividends to
the Company's shareholder is recognised as a liability in the Company's financial statements in the period
in which the dividends were approved by the Company’s sharshalder,

Dividend income is recognised when the right of payment has been established and the economic benefits
are expected to be received.

§ Accounting for Government Grants

Received government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the agrant will be
received and that any conditions attached to the grant will be met, If the government grant relates to the
settlement of costs, it is recognised as income over the period required for a systematic compensation of
the grant with related costs for the settlement of which the grant is intended. If the government grant
relates to the acquisition of non-current assets, it is recognised as deferred income and recognised in the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the relevant asset.

Government grants are recognised in the balance sheet using a deferred income method.
m) Provisions for Liabilities

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. The
amount of the provision is the present value of the risk-adjusted expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The applied discounted rate reflects the current market expectations regarding the
time value of money and risks specific to the relevant liability. Where discounting is used, the carrying
amount of the provision increases in each period to reflect the unwinding of the discount by the passage of
time.

n) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they were incurred, except for
borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition, construction or production of the relevant non-current
assets, Such borrowing costs are recognised as part of the cost of such assets until they are placed Into
service.

o) Recognition of Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised upon the delivery of goods or services net of value
added tax and discounts at a point in time or over a certain time period in accordance with IFRS 15 in
order to disclose the transfer of goods or services to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for such goods or services,

Revenues from the sale of natural gas and revenues from the sale of electricity are recognised at the
moment the commodity is supplied to the customer based on the actually measured or estimated energy
consumption at the agreed price.

P Other Gains and Losses

The Company recognises other gains that do not meet the requirements of the standard, IFRS 15
"Revenue from Contracts with Customers” and the corresponding losses in profit or loss on a net basis,
Other gains and losses include the result of trading activities and the sale of a commodity with physical
delivery falls under the scope of IFRS 9, gains and losses on the sale of assets and raw materials, other
taxes and charges, FX differences from operating activities and other operating profits and losses. The
Company recognises the result of trading activities on a nel basis after the recognition of purchases or
sales and the remeasurement of open positions.

q) Social Security and Pension Schemes

The Company Is required to make contributions to various mandatory governmenl insurance schemes,
together with contributions by employees. The cost of social security payments is charged to the income
statement in the same period as the related salary cosL.
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r) Retirement and Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

The Company has a long-term employee benefit pregram comprising a lump-sum retirement benefit, and
work jubilee benefits, for which no separate financial funds were earmarked. In accordance with IAS 19,
the employee benefits costs are assessed using the projected unit credit method. Under this method, the
cost of providing pensions s charged to the income statement so as to spread the regular cost over the
service period of employees. The benefit obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted by market yields on Slovak government bonds, which have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related liability. All actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of other comprehensive income. Past service costs are recognised when incurred as expenses,

s) Leases

The assessment of whether or not a contract contains or represents a lease depends on the substance of
the contract and requires an assessment of whether the performance of the contract depends on the use
of a specific, clearly identifiable asset or whether the contract grants the right to use the asset for a period
of time for equivalent. The lessee has the right to control the use of the asset and obtain significant
economic benefits frem its use,

The Company does not apply IFRS 16 to leases of intangible assets, short-term lease contracts (less than
one year) and to leases where the underlying asset has a low value.

AL the date of the lease, as a lessee, the Company recognises an asset with the right of use and recognise
lease liability. An asset with the right of use is initially measured at cost and recognised in the separate
balance sheet line "Land, property, plant and equipment”. An asset with the right of use is subsequently
measured using the cost model, The amortization period is equal to the estimated useful life of the
underlying asset or the lease term. Depreciated assets with the right of use are tested for impairment
whenever the events or changes in conditions occur that could mean the carrying amount may not be
recoverable, but at least as of balance sheet date,

The lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of future lease payments and is presented in
the separate balance sheet line “Trade and other payables”, or "Other non-current liabilities”
Subsequently, the lease liability is increased by the relevant interest calculated on the basis of the
incremental borrowing rate and reduced by the lease payments. Interest is reported in the individual
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the line "Cost of financing”,

Leases for an indefinite period of time are limited to the earliest date on which the lease can be terminated
by the lessee or the lessor (taking into account previous customs and economic reasons for those
practices). The useful life of fixed-term leasing contracts corresponds to the contractual period.

Total lease payments under exceptions (leases of intangible assels, short-term lease centracts and leases
where the underlying asset is of low value) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term in the individual income statement and other comprehensive income,

ny as a lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases, Rental income arising Is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
incorme. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed.

Property |lease classification — Company as a lessor

The Company has entered into commercial property leases, which are recognised on the balance sheet line
*Investment property”, The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions
of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the
commercial property and the present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting te substantially
all of the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.
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t) Income Tax

Income tax is calculated from the profit/loss before tax recognised under International Financial Reporting
Standards adjusted pursuant to the relevant Decree of the Ministry of Finance of the Slovak Republic after
adjustments for individual items increasing and decreasing the tax base in line with Act No. 59572003 Coll.
on Income Tax, as amended, using the applicable income tax rate.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, for all temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, Deferred tax is calculated at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised, or the liability is settled. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss, except when it relates to items credited or
charged directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recorded in equity, The corporate income
tax rate for 2018 - 2020 was 21%.

The principal temporary differences arise from depreciations on property, plant, and equipment and
various provisions and reserves, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilisad.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised through profit or loss statement, except when they relate to ltems
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively,
A special levy is recognised as part of income taxes.

Special Levy on Business in Regulated Industries

Pursuant to the requirements of the IFRS, the income tax also includes a special levy as per Act No.
235/2013 Coll. on a Special Levy on Business in Regulated Industries and on Amendment to and
Supplementation of Certain Acts. It is recognised through profit or loss statement.

The Company is a regulated entity and has been obliged to pay special levies since September 2012, The
levy period is a calendar month and the levy rate effective for 2020, the same as for 2019 is 0.00545 (the
levy rate effective for 2018 was 0.00726, the levy rate effective from 2021 will be 0.00363). The base for
the Company's levy is the profit/loss before lax recognised in accordance with IFRS and adjusted to the
profit/loss recognised pursuant to the relevant Decree of the Ministry of Finance of the Slovak Republic and
further adjusted pursuant to the Special Levy Act.

u) Foreign Currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the exchange rates of the European Central
Bank (ECB) valid on the transaction dates. Monetary assets, receivables, and payables denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the ECB exchange rates valid on the reporting date. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are included in the income statement,

v) Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Mon-current assets are classified as held for sale if thelr carrying amount can be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is considered fulfiled only when the sale is
highly probable, and the non-current asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as
a completed sale within one year from the date of classification. This classification was also applied to
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated companies which were partially disposed of during the
reorganisation of the SPP Group (refer to Note 1.1).

Mon-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount
and the fair value less costs to sell,
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4. ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, as described in Mote 3, 5PP has made the
following decisions concerning uncertainties and estimates that have a significant impact on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements. There is a significant risk of material adjustments in future periods
relating to such matters, including the following:

Litigation

SPP is involved in various legal proceedings for which management has assessed the probability of loss
that may result in cash cutflow. In making this assessment, SPP has relied on the advice of external legal
counsel, the latest available information on the status of the court proceedings, and an internal evaluation
of the likely outcome. The final amount of any potential losses In relation to the legal proceedings is not
known and may result in a material adjustment to the previous estimates. Details of the legal cases are
included in Note 28,

Provision for Litigation and Potential Disputes

The financial statements include a provision for litigation and potential disputes which were estimated
using available information and an assessment of the achievable outcome of the individual disputes, The
provision is not recognised unless a reasonable estimate can be made,

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company calculated and recorded amounts for the impairment of property, plant and equipment on
the hasis of an evaluation of their future use, on planned liquidation or sale, and based on information
received from real estate agencies. For some of these items, no final decision has yet been made and thus
the assumptions on the use, liquidation, or sale of assets may change. Refer to Mote 7 for details on the
impairment of property, plant and equipment.

Impairment of Investments in Subsidiaries and Asseciated Company

Financial investrments in subsidiaries and in an associated company were initially measured at cost. The
realisable value of SPP CZ, a.s. depends on the sale of natural gas to customers in the Czech Republic. The
realisable value of SPP CNG, s.r.o, depends on CNG sales in Slovakia. The realisable value of SPP
Infrastructure, a.s. depends on the financial results of its subsidiaries and joint ventures; as regards
eustream, a.s., NAFTA, a.s., SPP Slorage, s.r.0. and Pozagas, a.s., the realisable value depends on the
overall demand for gas transmission and gas storage services and on the performance of long-term
contracts which generate a significant portion of income for these companies; as regards SPP - distriblcia,
a.5., the realisable value depends on the development of regulatory environment and gas consumption in
Slovakia, as almost all income is regulated by a distribution tariff consisting of fixed and variable portions
depending on the actual volume of distributed gas. SPP monitors the financial results of its subsidiaries
and assoclated company.

SPP identified impairment of the investment in SPP CZ, a.s, (subsidiary) for the first time in 2013,

SPP identified impairment of the investment in SPP Infrastructure, a.s. (associated company) in 2014 due
to a decrease in the share capital and in 2015 due to a decrease in the legal reserve fund of 5PP
Infrastructure, a.s. SPP identified impairment of the investment in SPP CNG, s.r.o. (subsidiary) for the first
time in 2018,

Unkilled revenues from gas and electricity sales

SPP records significant amounts as revenues from gas and electricity sales on the basis of estimated gas
and electricity consumption by small industrial customers and residential customers. Actual consumption of
such customers is determined based on an annual deduction performed after the reporting date, SPP
makes an estimate of these revenues by allocating actual measured gas and electricity consumption to the
individual categories of customers on the basis of past consumption trends and applying the valid natural
gas and electricity prices. Actual consumption by customers in the different categories may vary and so0
the amounts recorded as revenues may change, given the price differences between categories of
customers.

The Company uses a model that makes it possible to estimate these revenues with sufficient accuracy and
ensures that the risk of a significant difference between the guantity sold and the resulting estimated
revenue s not material,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the separate financial statements. 21
This is an English language translation of the ornginal Slovak language document,



Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

(EUR 000}

The Company applies a simplified approach under IFRS 9 for trade and short-term receivables, le.
measures expected credit losses (ECL) using lifetime expected losses. Impairment losses on trade and
other receivables are recognised in income statement. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can
be objectively attributed to an event that occurs after the recognition of an impalirment loss.

situation in Ukraine

The Company is monitoring the development of the situation in Ukraine and its potential impact on the
Company's business. The Company’s management believes that a significant negative impact on the
Company's financial performance is unlikely. The Company seeks to diversify its natural gas resources by
purchasing and using reverse flows from Western Europe, and also by maintaining maximum natural gas
reserves in storage facilities which are able to cover short-term deficits in Russian natural gas supplies. In
the event of a long-term non-performance of liabilities by the Russian supplier of natural gas there may be
potential adverse impacts, which, however, cannot be reasonably estimated,

Provision for Onerous Conkracts

As at 31 December 2020, the separate financial statements include significant amounts recognised as
provisions for onerous contracts with respect to non-cancellable contractual commitments to supply
natural gas to customers based on sales contracts, These provisions are based on current market
infarmation on the future development of natural gas prices in spot markets, which are vaolatile. For maore
information, see Note 13,

A global pandemic caused by COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic affected the functioning of many companies and countries, including Slovakia,
which had a global impact on the global economy and disrupted many economic chains. The virus has
exposed the Company, Its employees, customers and business partners to peotential health and operational
risks. The Company's management has considered the effects of COVID-19 and the ongoing coronavirus
crisis on its business activities and concluded that they do not have a material impact on the Company's
activities and do not pose a material threat to significant judgments and uncertainties in the 2020 financial
statements. However, as the situation continues to change, future impacts cannot be predicted.
Managermnent will continue to monitor potential impacts and take all possible steps to mitigate any adverse
effects an the Company and its employees,

Decisions in Application of Accounting Policies

In addition to key sources of uncertainty listed above, the Company used judgment when applying
accounting policies and assessing the requirements of the standards as described in Note 3, which have
a significant impact on the recognition of items in the separate financial statements, These requirements
mainly include:

. Evaluation of requirements under IFRS 13 for the measurement of non-financial assets at fair value
(see Notes 3e, 3i and 3p); and
. Assessment of the IFRS 9 rules for the application of an exemption allowing one not to account for

certain commodity buy and sell contracts as financial derivatives (see Note 3e),
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a) Financial Risk Management

The Company is exposed to various financial risks, including the effects of changes in gas purchase and
selling prices. The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company. In
2020 and 2019, the Company entered into derivative transactions, for example, forward currency
contracts and commodity swaps, in order to manage certain risks. The purpose of forward currency
contracts is to eliminate the effects of changes in the CZK/EUR exchange rates owing to future payments
and revenues dencminated in a foreign currency. The purpose of commodity swaps is to limit the price
risks of sale contracts with customers and purchase contracts with suppliers.

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are commodity price risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Risk management Is performed by the Risk Management Department in
accordance with the procedures approved by the Board of Directors.

(1) Commodity Price Risk

The Company is a party to framework agreements for the purchase of natural gas and other services and
materials. In addition, the Company enters into contracts for natural gas sales and natural gas storage.
Contracts for natural gas storage are at fixed prices, which are escalated every year based on price
indices,

As at 31 December 2020 the Company used commodity swap contracts to manage the risk of commodity
price fluctuations. As at 31 December 2019, the Company also used hedging derivative contracts to hedge
sale transactions.

The following table details the open commodity swap contracts at the reporting date:

Open commodity swap

31 December 2020 31 December 2020
contracts e e ——
Nominal amount Change in fair value
Held Held
Hedging for trading Hedging for trading
Purchase/sell gas
Less than 3 months 91 560 . 14 187
3 to 12 months 182 124 - 27 208 -
Ower 12 months 73312 237 6176 (24}
Open commodity swap 31 December 2019 321 December 2019
contracts
Neminal amount Change in fair value
Held Held
Hedging for trading Hedging for trading
Purchase/sell gas
Less than 3 months 125 B23 - (40 663
3 to 12 months 250 060 (68 955) -
Owver 12 months 76 321 238 [5 598) {5)

The Company uses hedging instruments to secure cash flow hedging and fair value of sales contracts.
Cash flow hedging

The main risk affecting the price of natural gas is defined as commaodity risk caused by price movements,
The alm of cash flow hedaing is therefore to ensure a fixed cost of sourcing the sales contracts, which are
sold at fixed price. The risk of a change in the values of the input parameter affecting the price of natural
gas is thus fully eliminated based on an agreement with the counterparty to compensate their
development,

The Company recognises the following commeodity contracts:

At 31 December At 31 December

2020 2019
Commodity swaps
Mominal amaunt in MWwh 0 785 304 10 203 440
Maominal amount in EUR ths. 109 713 174 757
The accompanying netes form an integral part of the separate financial statements 23 .
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The effect of hedging instruments in the balance sheet is as follows:

At 31 December 2020 At 31 December 2019
Line in the balance sheet

Other non-current assets 2 542 e
Receivables and prepayments 19 142 1253
Other non-current liabilities - (1817
Trade and other payables (2 547) {49 3497
Mominal value recorded in contingent assets and liabilities 109 713 174 757

The effect of hedging instruments in the income statement and in the statement of other comprehensive
income is as follows:

Year ended Year ended
21 December 31 December
2020 2019

Line in the income statement
Purchase of natural gas, electricity and material and energy
consumption (93 22N (59 986)
Revenue from contracts with customers - E
Line in the statement of other comprehensive income
Hedging derivatives (cash flow hedging) 19 135 (50 514)

Fair value hedging

To eliminate the commodity risk, the Company decided to manage the risks by offering a fixed price to the
customer through “back to back” hedging in the form of commodity swaps of the sales formula. The
objective of the hedging instrument is to hedge the fair value of the yield contract. The risks of changes in
the values of the input parameters affecting the selling price of natural gas are thus fully eliminated based
on an agreement with the counterparty to compensate their development,

The effect of hedging instruments in the balance sheet is as follows:

At 31 December 2020 At 31 December 2019
Line in the statement of financial position

Other non-current assets 4 536 g9
Receivables and prepayments 26 414 -
Other non-current liabilities (901} (3 B79)
Trade and other payables {4 014} {60 922)
Naminal value recorded in contingent assets and liabilities 237 283 277 447

The effect of hedged items in the balance sheet is as follows:

At 31 December 2020 At 31 December 2019
Line in the statermnent of financial position

Other non-current assels 901 3 BV
Heceivables and prepayments 4 014 60 922
QOther non-current liahilities {4 536) (99)
Trade and other pavables (28 #5140 -

(2) Interest Rate Risk

The Company was exposed to minimum interest rate risks associated with interest rate volatility, as it
drew a non-current loan with a fixed interest rate and a loan with a floating interest rate provided by an
associated company.

For SPP, the volatility of interest rates for short-term loans does not represent a significant risk as such
Inans are drawn only occasionally, and the level of interbank EURIBOR interest rates have recently besn at
their historical minimums (1M EURIBOR is used as a reference interest rate for short-term loans drawn by
the Company and was -0.554 % p.a. as at 31 December 2020, i.e. a decrease of 0.116% p.a. compared to
31 December 2019, when 1M EURIBOR was -0.438% p.a.).

Given the minimum level of short-term interest rates, sensitivity Lo a potential decrease of interest rates
by more than 0.1-0.2% cannot be tested. On the contrary, il interest rates increase, interest expenses will
increase only slightly, since these loans are drawn by the Company only several times a year.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the separate financial statements. 24
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As at 31 December 2020 a short - term loan from the associated company SPP Infrastructure, a.s. was
drawn in amount EUR 1 373 thousand. As at 31 December 2019, no short-term loan was drawn by the
Company. During the years 2020 and 2019, short-term loans were drawn down in a minimum extent, to
cover a lack of liquidity for a short period of time.

{3}  Credit risk related to receivables

The Company sells its products and services to various customers that, neither individually nor as a whaole
in terms of volume and solvency, represent a significant risk that receivables will not be settled pursuant
to the valid risk management policy. The Company has policies in place that ensure that products and
cervices are sold to customers with an appropriate credit history and that an acceptable limit to credit
exposure is not exceeded.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset,
including derivative financial instruments, in the balance sheet, net of provisions,

(4) Liquidity Risk

Prudent liguidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash with an appropriate due date and
marketable securities, the availability of funding through an adeguate amount of committed credit lines,
and the ability to close open market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business,
Treasury department aims to maintain flexibility by keeping committed credit lines available and
synchronising the maturity of financial assets with financial needs. To settle outstanding liabilities, the
Company has funds and undrawn credit lines at its disposal.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company drew only a current loan from an associate SPP Infrastructure, a.s.
amounting to EUR 1 373 thousand. As at 31 December 2019 the Company drew only a non-current loan
amounting to EUR 84 909 thousand, which remaining value as at 31 December 2019 was recognised as
short-term credit resources of EUR 84 909 thousand, as its maturity was on 2 July 2020,

Loans with maturity of less than 2 vyears are drawn in EUR with a variable interest rate linked to
1M EURIBOR (in some cases O/N for overdraft facilities). For non-current loans, the interest rate is set as
fixed.

The bulk of short-term credit lines include an autematic loan extension clause, provided that none of the
parties concerned cancels the loan within the specified period. Long- or medium-term loans have a fixed
maturity date.

All loans are provided without any collateral, using common market provisions (pari-passu, ban to pledge
assets, substantial negative impact). With regard to the balance of the credit facilities drawn as al
31 December 2020 of EUR 1 373 thousand (whereas the funds and tradable securities amounted to EUR
247 869 thousand}, the net debt totals EUR 0. If necessary, maturing credit facilities may be paid off from
undrawn credit facilities, as well as from available funds and tradable securities (at 31 December 2020 of
EUR 364 000 thousand from banks),

The table below summarises the maturity of financial liabilities at 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2019 based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Less than 3 Fto 12 1to5

31 December 2020 on demand i e Rt years = 5 years Total
Loans (Mote 14) = 1373 - - 1373
Other liabilities 22 505 32271 7191 415 62 382
Trade payables = 143 423 - - - 143 423
Less than 3 Itail2 lte5s

31 December 2019 On demand e it aE s years > 5 years Total
Loans {Mote 14) - - 84 909 - - 84 909
Dther liabilities 6B 283 82 364 B 276 622 154 545
Trade payables = 146 959 - = . 146 959
_The ;cp[;r:_;[:;l.l;p.:ln';rmg nates form T:m iﬁm_qrul part of the separate fina_ncial statements. 25
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b) Capital Risk Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it continues as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholder through optimising the debt and equity ratio, as well as through ensuring a high
credit rating and sound capital ratios,

The capital structure of the Company consists of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to the
Company’s owner, which comprise the registered capital, legal and other reserves and retained earnings
as disclosed in Notes 18 and 19 and loans as disclosed in Note 14,

The gearing ratio:

At 31 December

At 31 December

2020 2019
Debt {i) 1 373 84 209
Cash and cash equivalents 247 BGO 172 996
Met debt 3 -
Equity {11} 2 501 763 2422 087
Met debt to equity ratio 0 % 0 %%

(#) Debt is defined as non-current and short-term borrowings
(5} Page 5

c) Categories of Financial Instruments

At 31 December

At 31 December

2020 2019

Financial assets

Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents) 469 452 425 9BL

Financial derivatives held for trading 8 833 40 733

Financial derivatives recognised as hedging 59 948 66 153
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities carried at amortised costs 157 885 254 480

Financial derivatives held for trading b 696 13 544

Financial derivatives recognised as hedging 40 811 116 667

d) Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of estimated future cash flows using
forward interest rates as at the reporting date and agreed forward rates taking into account the credit risks
of various parties.

The fair value of commodity swaps is determined using forward commodity prices and forward exchange
rates at the reporting date and the agreed forward rates, taking into account the credit risk of various
parties,

The fair value of ordinary shares not in a book-entry form has been estimated using a valuation technigque
based on assumptions that they are not supported by observable market prices. The valuation requires
management to make estimates of the expected future cash flows from shares that are discounted at
current rates,

Estimated fair values of financial assets and liabilities thal are not regularly remeasured Lo fair value

The estimated fair values of other instruments, mainly current financial assets and liabilities approximate
their carrying amounts,

When determining the fair value of non-traded derivatives and other financial instruments, the Company
uses a number of methods and markel assumptions that are based on the market conditions prevailing as
at the reporting date. Other methods, mainly the estimaled discounted value of future cash flows, are
used to determine the fair value of other financial instruments.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the separate ﬁl:ran{;ial statements, 26
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The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that, upon initial revaluation, are
subsequently recognised at fair value, in accordance with the fair value hierarchy.

Level 1 of the fair value measurement represents those fair values that are derived from the prices of
similar assets or liabllities quoted on active markets.

Level 2 of the fair value measurement represents those fair values that are derived from input data other
than the quoted prices included in Level 1, which are observable on the market for assets or liabilities
directly (e.q. prices) or indirectly (e.g. derived from prices}.

Level 3 of the fair value measurement represents those fair values that are derived from valuation models,
including subjective input data for assets or liabilities not based on market data.

2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets at fair value 6 104 62 677 - 68 781
Fimancial derivatives held for trading 6 104 2729 - 8 833
Financial derivatives recognised as hedging = 50 948 - 59 G948
Available-for-sale financial assets - - -
Financial liabilities at fair value 884 46 623 # 47 507
Financial derivatives held for trading 384 5812 - & L9G
Financial derivatives recoanised as hedging - 40 811 - 40 811
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Taotal

Financial assets at fair value 2 890 103 9296 - 106 886
Financial derivatives held for trading 2 B90 37843 - 40 733
Financial derivatives recognised as hedging - 66 153 - 66 153
Available-for-sale financial assets - - -
Financial liahilities at fair value 1261 133 950 - 135 211
Financial derivatives held for trading 13261 17 283 - 18 544
Financial derivatives recognised as hedging - 116 B6&7 - 116 667

Embedded Derivative Instruments

The Company signed a long-term contract for purchases of natural gas denominated in USD. Following an
agreement with the Russian partner, the contract was modified by an amendment and the price was
converted to FUR with a direct link to the development of the relevant spot market. Both the economic
characteristics and risks of embedded forward derivative instruments (USD to EUR), and natural gas prices
are generally believed to be closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the underlying
purchase agreements. Hence, in accordance with IFRS 9, S5PP does not recognise embedded derivatives
separately from the host contract.

The Company has assessed all other significant contracts and agreements for embedded derivatives that
should be recorded. The Company concluded that there are no embedded derivatives in these contracts
and agreements that are required to be measured and recognised separately as al 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2019 under the requirements of IFRS 9.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the separate financial statements. 27
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6. SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, JOINT VENTURES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

Joint ventures and

As at 31 December 2019 Subsidiaries associated companies
Opening balance, net 11 2026 551
Additions _ }
Disposals
Impairmant = -
Closing balance, net 11 - 2026 551
Cost 6 551 2 026 551
Impairmant (6 540) =
Closing balance; net 11 2026 551
Az at 31 December 2020 Subsidiaries Joint ventures and
associated companies
Opening balance, net 11 2026 551
Additions - Z
Disposals z a
Impairment 2 -
Closing balance, net 11 2 026 551
Losk i 551 2 026 551
Impairment {6 540} 2 =
Closing balance, net 11 2026 551

The infermation on subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated companies of SPP as at 31 December 2020
and 31 December 2019 can be summarised as follows:

Country of Ownership - ,
Name incerporation g g Principal activity
SPP CZ, a.s. Czech Republic 100 Purchase and sale of natural gas and
electricity
SPP CNG s.r.o. Slovakia 100 Sale of CNG
SPP Infrastructure, a.s. Slovakia 51 Asset holding
Madacia SFF Slovakia 100 Foundation
EkoFond, n.f. Slovakia 100 Mon-investment fund
Meziskova organizacia EF Slovakia 100 MNon-profit organisation

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the 51% non-controlling ownership interest in SPP
Infrastructure, a.s. is recognised in accordance with the relevant IFRS as a financial investment in an
associated company.

Additional information on subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated companies;

Equity Profit/(loss)
Name and seat of the company 2020 2019 2020 2019

SPP CZ, a.s.
Seat: Nové sady 996/25, Staré Brno,

602 00 Brno, Czech Republic 17514 Hs. CZK 16 990 tis, CZK 524 tis. CZK (7 676) tis. CZK

SPP CNG s.r.o.

Seat: Mlynské nivy 44/a, Bratislava 3 666 4084 (418} (463)
SPP Infrastructure, a.s. "

Seat: Mlynské nivy 44/a, Bratislava 4 732 041 4 673 B&3 S84 486 G607 114
Madacia SPP

Seat: Mlynskeé nivy 44/a, Bratislava 200 299 -
EkoFond, n.f.

Seat: Miynské nivy 44/a, Bratislava 1 462 1 B50 -

Meziskova organizacia EF

Seat: Miynské nivy 4924/ 44/,

Bratislava 1 1 - -
M In 2007, SPP Infrastructure, a.s. changed its reporting period to the fiscal vear from 1 October to 30 September, The
prafiffloss for 2019 is for the period from I January 2019 tp 31 December 2019 and the profitffloss) for 2020 is for the perod
fram 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the separate financial statements. 2B
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Type and amount of insurance of property, plant, machinery and equipment and non-current intangible
assels:

Cost of insured assets Name of the insurance
Insured assets Type of insurance 2020 2019 company
Buildings, halls, structures,
machinery, equipment, fittings, low- Colonnade Insurance
value TFA, other TFA, works of art, Insurance of assets 214 473 213 846 5.A., pobofka polsfovne
inventores z iného flenskeého Statu

Mowvables, assets, inventories
Cost of fully depreciated non-current assets (includes also software classified in non-current intangible

assets), which were still in use as at 31 December 2020, amounted to EUR 103 555 thousarnd
(31 December 2019: EUR 102 663 thousand).

B. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

2020 2019
Opening net book value 24 262 25 064
Depreciation charge (1 278) (1 212)
Change in provisions 122 168
Additiens, disposals and reclassifications to non-current tangible assets B33 242
Closing net book value B 23 939 24 262

SPP leases gas-industry not related assets mainly to SPP — distribicia, a.s. In accordance with 1AS 40,
SPP selected for the recognition at historical cost. The Company estimated that the restated value of the
assets according to a fair value model would be EUR 30 512 thousand if a fair value model was used (as
at 31 December 2019: EUR 30 541 thousand).

9. NON-CURRENT INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Other non-

P Assets in
Software intangible course of Total
construction
assets
Year ended 31 December 2019
Cpening net book value 10 604 731 833 12 168
Additions - 2 1161 1163
Flaced into service 1039 204 (1243) -
Reclassifications - - - =
Disposals - : - =
Amortisation {1967) (190} - {2 157)
Change of provisions 53 - a3
Closing net book value 9 769 7a7 751 11 267
At 31 December 2019
Acquisition cost 75 063 3 337 318 79 218
Provisions and accumulated depreciation {65 294) (2 590) (B7) {67 951)
Met book value 9 769 747 751 11 267
Year ended 31 December 2020
Opening net book value 9 769 747 751 11 2&7
Additions 16 - 2 315 2331
Placed into service 1411 4 (1015 -
Reclassifications o - " .
Disposals = 5 ™
Amaortisation (1649) (144 - {1 793)
Change of provisions 161 - 3 161
Closing net book value 9 308 607 2051 11 966
Ab 31 December 2020
Acquisition cost 76 085 3341 2118 81 544
Provisions and accumulated depreciation (66 T77) {2 734} [6) (69 578)
Met book value 9308 _ 607 2051 11 966
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the separate financial statements, 30
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10. INVENTORIES

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Matural gas 76 526 156 372
Matural gas held for trading 19 557 45 653
Raw materals & 7
Provisions o (2637) _ {2170}
Total 93 452 199 B62

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Company recorded a provision for natural gas
related to the adjustment of the cost of natural gas to its net realisable value,

11. RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Trade receivables from natural gas and electricity sales 140 379 116 462
Contractual assets from sales to customers 18 008 10y 542
Prepayments for natural gas distribution 15 9B3 15 063
Receivables from financial derivatives 55 215 101 274
Prepayments and other receivables 47 213 110 922
Total 280 798 354 263

As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables from natural gas and electricity sales are shown net and
represent receivables from billed gas and electricity supplies,

Contractual assets from sales to customers represent estimated amounts of unbilled commeodity supplies
to customers whose actual consumption will be determined based on a meter reading after the end of
the calendar year. Such amounts are billed in the following 12 months based on the actual measured
consumption and valid tariffs.

Receivables and prepayments are shown net of provisions for bad and doubtful receivables of EUR
164 183 thousand {31 December 2019: EUR 183 B58 thousand}.

As at 31 December 2020, receivables and prepayments also include receivables from SPP CZ, a.s. af EUR
7 139 thousand (31 December 2019: EUR & 249 thousand), from SPP CNG s.r.o. of EUR 453 thousand
(31 December 2019: EUR 334 thousand) and from SPP Infrastructure, a.s. of EUR 4 thousand
(31 December 2019: EUR 4 thousand).

As at 31 December 2020, the Company recorded receivables within maturity of EUR 300 960 thousand
and overdue receivables of EUR 144 021 thousand (excluding provisions). In the comparable period, i.e.
as at 31 December 2019, the Company recorded receivables within maturity of EUR 364 276 thousand
and overdue receivables of EUR 173 845 thousand (excluding provisions). As at 31 December 2019, thi
Company recorded receivables from customers in the large consumer and commercial market segments
of EUR 37 015 thousand, for which the Company concluded thal a specific provision would be required.
The reason for specific provision were management’s doubts about the customer’s ability to repay
amounts to the Company. Due to limited availability of information on the customers® ability to pay its
liabilities and the related high level of uncertainty, as at 31 December 2019 the Company recorded a
provision for all overdue receivables from the customers and also partially for receivables within maturity
of EUR 31 195 thousand. As at 31 December 2020 the Company has assessed that it s not necessary Lo
create a specific allowance beyond the timing adjustments.

Maturities of trade receivables used as a benchmark for the Company's internal policy of provisioning:

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Within maturity 300 960 364 276
Less than 3 months 7323 10 928
3 to 12 months 5 GBY9 28 B/4
More than 12 months B 131 009 134 043
Total : 444 981 538 121 _
Fhé accnmpnuyuu_j notes ﬁ:rrn:.F.m integral part of t|'|-E_SEpE'If£!i.U financial statements. H
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The movements in provisions for current receivables were as follows:

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Opening balance (183 B58) {159 568)
Creation (20 310} (30 706)
Use 15358 5 748
Reversal 24 (33 [=1a%3)
Reclassification between current and non-current portions B =
Closing balance (164 183) (183 858)

12. RETIREMENT AND OTHER LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The long-term employee benefits programme at SPP was ariginally launched in 1995. This is a defined
benefit programme, under which employees are entitled to a Jump-sum payment upon old age or
disability retirement and, subject to vesting conditions, work jubilee payments. In 2017 SPP signed
collective agreement that was valid until the end of 2020. On 10 December 2020, a new collective
agreement for 2021 and 2022 was signed, under which employees are entitled to retirement payments
based on the number of years worked at SPP upon retirement after meeting the relevant conditions.
Retirement benefits range from three to five average monthly salaries of employees with a guaranteed
minimum (EUR 700) and threshold maximum amount (EUR 1 5003 of the relevant multiples. The amount
ol leng-term empioyes benefits - work anniversaries is determined based on the number of years of
continuous work. There are 6 periods, where the first-time remuneration begins to be paid when
10 years are reached (120 EUR) and the last when 40 years are reached (620 EUR). As at 31 December
2019 the obligation relating to retirement and other long-term employee benefits was calculated based
en the valid collective agreement effective fram 1 January 2018 and as at 31 December 2020 based on
the valid collective agreement effective from 1 January 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, there were 726 (31 December 2019: 679) employees of SPP covered by this
programme. As of that date, it was an un-funded programme, with no separately allocated assets to
cover the programme’s liabilities,

The movements in the net liability recognised in the balance sheet for the year ended 31 December 2020
are as follows:

Long-term Post- Total at 31 Total at 31
benafits employment December December
benefits 2020 2019
Met liability at 1 January 246 BHD 1135 1054
Expenses of the past and current service,
net 19 50 79 79
Interest expense 2 6 B 15
Employee benefits paid {19} (21} (40 (49]
Actuarial (gains)lasses:
Actuarial (gains)flosses fram a change in
demographic assumptions - - =
Actuarial (gains)/losses from a change in
financial assumptions 11 (52 (41) 82
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from
experience 21 5 26 [46G)
Net liabilities 280 887 1167 1135
Current liabilities Not-tarrait
(included in other current liabilities Total
liabilities)
Al 31 December 2020 a7 1070 1167
At 31 December 2019 65 1070 1135
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the separate financial statements, 32
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A breakdown of items related to the liability for employee benefits recognised in the income statement

for the reporting period is stated below:

Lang-tarm Post- Total at 31 Total at 31
benefits employment December December
benefits 2020 2019

Expenses of the past and current service,
net 19 &0 79 79
Interest expense 2 [ 8 15
Other {decrease of liability) 32 - 32 o -
Total expenses for employee benefits 53 66 119 94

A breakdown of items related to the liability for employee benefits recognised in the statement of other

comprehensive income is stated below:

Long-term Post- Total at 31 Total at 31
Henelits employment December December
benefits 2020 2019
Actuaral (gains)flosses from a change in
demographic assumptions - - & i
Actuarial {gains)/losses from a change in
financial assumptions - [52) [52) 82
Actuarial {gains)flosses arising from
experience = 5 5 - (46}
Total actuarial (gains)/losses " - (47) (47) 26

Sensitivity analysis — in the event of an increase/decrease in the discount rate and/or inflation, the

amount of the liability for employee benefits would change as follows:

Total
Loeng-term o P.'zsf;mnr at 31
benefits i December

benefits 2020
Increase in the discount rate by 0.25%% 274 He3 1 137
Increase in inflation by 0.25% 286 a04 1150
Decrease in the discount rate by 0.25% 284 908 1192
Decrease in inflation by 0,25% (at 0%} 280 871 1151

Key assumptions used in actuarial valuation:
At 31 December 2020

Market yield on government bonds
Annual future real rate of salary increases

0,201 %%

0.50 %

Ranging from 1.9% to 20%
depending on the age cateqory,
average of 6.01%

in 2021, 62 years plus 10 months
fur men and women.

The average estimated age for
drawing an old age pension benefit
Is B3.5.

Annual employees turnover

Retirement ages (male and female)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the separate financial statements.
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At 31 December 2019

0.718 %

2.00 %

Ranging from 1.9% to 20%
depending on the age category,
average of 5.01%

In 2020, 62 years plus & months
for men and wornen.

The average estimated age for
drawing an old age pension
benefit is 63.4.
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13. PROVISIONS

The movements in provisions for liabilities are summarised as follows:

Provision for

aicran Other Total at 31 Total at 31
ContraEts provisions December 2020 December 2019
Balance at 1 January B 661 35 208 43 869 56 235
Effect of discounting (4&) - {46) {207}
Additions 2 699 388 308y 6531
Lise (6 171) - {6 171} (16 070)
Reversal - {1927} - - A18ETy [ 620)
Closing balance 3 216 35 596 38 812 43 869
The provisions are included in liabilities as follows:
Current Non-current Total
provisions provisions provisions
AL 31 December 2020 2 930 35 882 38 812
At 31 December 2019 & 482 37 387 43 869

a) Provision for Onerous Contracts

The Company identified and recorded a provision for onerous contracts in connection with non-
cancellable contractual commitments to supply natural gas to customers and business partners under
sales contracts in 2021 and beyond. These provisions are based on an assumption that the future costs
Lo purchase natural gas, which are mainly influenced by the long-term purchase contract with Gazprom
Export LLC, to provide natural gas to these customers, will exceed the economic benefits obtained at the
sale. The calculation of the provision is subject to various assumptions of current market information
relating to the future development of natural gas prices on spot markets, which are volatile. The actual
losses generated with regard to these contracts may vary moderately. However, due to the realisation of
hedging derivatives, we do not expect significant differences, The actual amount of losses may also be
affected by the current situation caused by the COVID-19 pandemic,

b) Other Provisions

Other provisions amounting to EUR 35 596 thousand (31 December 2019: EUR 35 208 thousand)
comprise a provision for various pending court and other potential disputes. Refer also to Note 78,

14. LOANS
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019
Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Tatal

Interest-bearing

horrowings - 1373 1373 - 84 909 B4 909
Bonds - L a - = -
Total - 1373 . 1373 - 84 909 S4T__909
Loans by currency
ELIR
- with fixed interest rate - - - - B4 Q09 84 909
- with variable interest

rate = 1373 1373 - . £
Total loans - 1373 1373 = 84 909 84 909
Loans are due as follows:
Less than 1 year - 1373 1373 - 84 909 84 909
1to 2 years - - = - =
2 to 5 years = = 3
More than & years - = x| -
Total loans == = 1373 1373 " 84909 84909
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In 2020 and 2019, SPP drew loans denominated in EUR with variable and fixed interest rates. As at
31 December 2020, the loan with variable interest rate was drawn from associate company SPP
Infrastructure, a.s., amounting to EUR 1 373 thousand. As at 31 December 2018, SPP drew a long-term
bank loan of EUR 84 909 thousand with a fixed interest rate of 4,125 % p. a., which was repaid in July
2020.

Long-term loan bore interest at a fixed interest rate; short-term loans can be drawn on a revolving basis
with one-month interest period or as an overdraft loan facility. The loans were not secured by any
assets.

Interest rates on loans:

Loans

EUR

— with a variable rate LM EURIBOR plus margin

The carrying amount and face value of loans and bonds:

Carrying amount Face value
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
Loans 1373 84 909 1373 85 000
Bonds _ N . = e N
Total 1373 84 909 1373 85 000

SPP has the following outstanding credit facilities:

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

Wariable rate:
= tlue within 1 year 274 000 304 000
- due after more than 1 year o 90000 _ r
Fixed rate:
- due within 1 year = -
- due after more than 1 year . - e P
Total 364 000 304 000

Based on certain loan agreements, SPP is required to comply with agreed financial covenants, ie on sach
relevant day of each calendar year over the term of the contract, the net debt of the Company on the
respective relevant day of the relevant calendar year against the Company's EBITDA for the previous
12 months prior to that relevant day may be not higher than 2. As at 31 December 2020, the Company
complied with this covenant.

15. DEFERRED INCOME

As at 31 Decemnber 2020 deferred income mainly comprises an inventory surplus of non - depreciable
assets in the amount of EUR 22 thousand (as at 31 December 2019: EUR 23 thousand}.

16. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES AND LEASE LIABILITIES

At 21 December At 31 December

2020 2019
Mon-current liabilities from financial dervatives 5820 7158
Mon-current lease liabilities 1 7EG 1742
Total 7 606 = 8 898
lhe Company recognised |ease liabilities as follows:

At 31 December At 31 December

2020 2019
Short-term lease liabilitics (Mote 17) 508 R20
Mon-current lease liabilities 3 1786 _ 1742
Lease liabilities total 2204 2262
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Maturity analysis of lease liabilities:

Within 1 year
1to 5 years

More than 5 years
Total

17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Payables from natural gas purchases and sales
Payables from electricity purchases and sales
Contractual payables from sales te customers
Other trade payables and other payables

From which Short-term lease liabilities
Amounts due to employees
Social security and other taxes
Payables from financial derivatives
Payables from distribution activitios
Total

At 31 December

Al 31 December

2020 2018
S0 520
1.37 1120
415 622
2294 2262

At 31 December

At 31 December

2020 2019
74 140 68 771
13 162 & 706
27802 37 797
23097 31 328
508 520
4 7ag 4 481
15 326 13001
41 68T 128 055
& 200 6 146
206 162 296 285

The payables from natural gas and electricity purchases and sales of represent current liabilities resulting
from the purchase of natural gas and electricity, and overpayments to customers purchasing natural gas
and electricity.

Contractual payables from sales to customers represent overpayments for commodity supplies to
customers, which are calculated by the Company using the model for unbilled deliveries and are
accounted for with the double entry as a decrease in revenue from the sale of the commedity in the
current year, The actual customer consumption will be determined by deductions after the end of the
calendar year. These amounts will be recognised based on the actual consumption measured that will be
determined by meter readings conducted in the 12 months following the end of the calendar year,

Maturity of contractual pavables as at 31 December 2020:

Current liabilities Non-current

labilities o
At 31 December 2020 27 8D2 - 27 BD2
At 31 December 2019 37 797 2 37 797

Trade payables and other payables as at 31 December 2020 also include payables ta SPP CZ, a.s. of
EUR 108 thousand (31 December 2019: EUR 74 thousand) and to SPP CNG s.r.o. of FUR 2 thousand
(31 December 2019: EUR 3 thousand),

As at 31 December 2020, SPP recorded payables within maturity of EUR 206 162 thousand: no overdue
payables were recorded, As at 31 December 2019 (for the comparable period ): SPP recorded payables
within maturity of EUR 296 285 thousand and no overdue payables were recorded.

The Company has no significant payables secured by liens or another form of security.

Social fund payables:

Amount
Cpening balance as at 1 January 2020 53
Total additions: 243
fram expenses 243
non-mandatory alfotment .
Total drawing: (216)
manetary honuses and qifts (21)
work juliilee benefits (1<)
catering aflowance {75)
benefit cafeteria (106)
other drawing as per the collective agreamant -
Closing balance as at 31 December 2020 80
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the separate financial staterments. 36
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18. REGISTERED CAPITAL

As a result, the Company's registered capital as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 comprises
26 666 536 fully-paid shares (with a face value of EUR 33.19}, which are owned by the Slovak Republic
represented by the Ministry of Economy of the Slovak Republic.

The registered capital was incorporated in the Commercial Register in the full amount.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, if all shares (except for treasury shares acquired by
the Company pursuant to Article 161a or Article 161b of the Commercial Code) are held by one
shareholder, in cases where the law requires a two-third (2/3) majority, a two-third (2/3) majority of
votes of the shareholders present at a general meeting is required to adopt decisions. If the company
has a sole shareholder, such a shareholder acts in the capacity of the general meeting in the form of
written decisions that must be signed by the shareholder. In cases stipulated by law, such decisions must
be in the form of a notarial deed.

19, LEGAL AND OTHER FUNDS AND RETAINED EARNINGS

Since 1 January 2006, SPP has been required to prepare financial statements in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the EU {both separate and consolidated) only. Distributable profit represents amounts only as
stated in the separate financial statements.

Legal reserve fund

The legal reserve fund of EUR 1 197 683 thousand (31 December 2019: EUR 1 197 683 thousand) is
recorded in accordance with Slovak law and is not distributable to the shareholders. The reserve is
created from retained earnings to cover possible future losses or increases in the registered capital.
Transfers of at least 10% of the current year's profit are required to be made until the reserve is equal to
at least 20% of the registered capital,

Hedging Reserve
Hedging reserve represents gains and losses arising from cash flow hedging.

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Cpening balance {50 514) (24 867

Gain/loss from cash flow hedging
Commaodity swap contracts 19135 {50 514)
Interest rate swap contracts . B
Income tax applicable to gains/losses recognised through equity = -

Transfer to profit/loss
Commaodity swap conlracts 50 514 24 B&7
Interest rate swap contracts -

Income tax applicable to gains/losses recognised through profit/loss -

Closing balance ) 19135 _ (50514)

A hedging reserve represents a cumulative accrued partion of gains and losses arising from a change in
the fair value of hedging instruments concluded for cash flow hedging purpeses. A cumulative gain or
loss arising from a change in the fair value of hedging derivatives recognised and accumulated in the
hedging reserve is reclassified to profit or loss provided that the hedged transaction has an effect on the
income statement.

As at 31 December 2020 the Company did not recognise a deferred tax liability related to the provision
for hedging derivatives because there are uncertainties regarding the sufficiency of future tax revenues
for its reallsation (see also Mete 25).

The accompanying notes farm an integral part of the scparate financial statements, 37
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Gains/(losses) arising from a change in the fair value of the hedging instruments transferred during the
current period from equity to profit or loss are disclosed in the following lines of the income statement:

Year ended Yaar ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Sale of natural gas S0 514 24 BBY
Purchases of natural gas, consumables and energy consumption - -
Other costs, net - -
Finance (costs)/revenues "

Income tax charged to expenses - o =
Total 50 514 24 867

Retained Earnings and Profit Distribution

Other funds and reserves in equity are not distributable to the Company's shareholders,

Distribution of Distribution of
Typeof Biiiment 2019 profit 2018 profit
Net profit amount for dividends pay-out and other allotments 220935 300 000
Transfer to retained earnings 4] - 13566
Profit for the 2019/2018 period 220 935 313 566

On 30 September 2019 the Company’s sole shareholder decided to transfer funds from the Company to
Madacia SFP in amount of EUR 2 millien to support sport and sport activities in Slovak Republic through
the civil association "Slovensky olympijsky a Sportovy wybor®,

On 30 October 2019, the Company's sole shareholder decided to transfer funds from the Company to
EkoFond, n.f. (non-profit fund) of EUR 500 thousand to support projects of the non-investment fund, to
Madacia SPP (SPP Foundation) of EUR 3 million to support community activities in line with the
Foundation Deed, to Neziskovd organizacia EF (non-profit organisation) of FUR 500 thousand to support
projects in line with the non-profit organization’s statutes and for the benefit of third parties including the
above entities in the maximum amount of EUR 1 million for community activities.

SPP treated these transfers as transactions with the owners exercising their ownership powers and the
transfers of funds were recognised as other distributions of profit.

20. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Revenues from the sale of natural gas 860 904 945 611
Revenues from the sale of electricity 237 602 162 121
Other revenues 8127 11 386
Total revenues from contracts with customers L i 1206 633 1119118

21. PERSONMEL EXPENSES

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Wages, salaries and bonuses 20 064 19 640
Social securily costs B 238 g 8 7BT
Total staff costs 28 302 28 427

The Company pays a contribution of 35.2% of the relevant statutory assessment base, which is capped
at EUR 7 091 (except for accident and health insurance). Employees contribute a further 13.4% of their
assessment bases into these funds, however capped at the above limit,

_fﬁe accempanviﬁq notes form an integral part of the separate financial statements. B
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22, INVESTMENT INCOME

Interest income

Dividends from joint ventures and associated companies
Other income/f(losses) on investments, net

Total investment income

23. FINANCE COSTS

Inkerest expense

Foreign exchange differences from financing activities - gain/{loss)
Other

Total finance costs

24. COSTS OF AUDIT SERVICES

Audit of financial statements

Other assurance services

Tax advisory services

Other related services provided by the auditor
Total

25. TAXATION

25.1. Income Tax

Income tax comprises the following:

Current income tax

Special levy on business in regulated industries
Deferred income tax (Mote 25.2)

= Currant year

= Change In the tax rate

Total

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
158 541
268 417 340 386
268 576 340 927
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
[1821) (3 494)
(18) 8
(231} (203}
(2 070) (3 689)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
75 75
75 75
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
32 106
13990 12 056
14 022 12 162

The reconciliation between the reported income tax and the theoretical amount calculated using the

standard tax rates Is as follows:

Profit before taxation
Income tax at the rate of 21%

Effect of income exempt from taxation and adjustments from
permanent differences between net book and net tax values of
assets and liabilities

Reversal of a deferred tax and effect of lemporary differences incl, the
tax loss for which no deferred tax asset was recognised

Effect of the change in the tax rate

Sspecial levy Incl. the effact of a special levy as a tax-deductible item

Other adjustments

Income tax for the year

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
273102 233 097
57 351 48 950
(52 717 {70 957}
(1620} 24 535
10 976 S 538
32 106
14 022 B 12 162
i 39
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The actually-recognised tax rate differs from the tax rate of 21% stipulated by law in 2020 mainly due to
the adjustments of the tax base in respect of the current income tax for items increasing and decreasing
the tax base pursuant to the valid tax legislation. Such adjustments mainly include non-taxable
dividends, tax non-deductible provisions for liabilities and provisions for assets, a difference between tax
and accounting deprecation charges of non-current assets, non-tax loss from non-hedging derivative
transactions, tax deductible expenses after payment and others.

Also, as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
were not recognised as there are uncertainties concerning sufficient future taxable income to utilise such
deferred tax assets,

Pursuant to the requirements of IFRS, the income tax also includes a special levy on business in
regulated industries pursuant to a special regulation (see Note 3, part t),

As at 31 December 2020, the Company recognised on the balance sheet an estimated liability from the
special levy on business in regulated industries in the amount of EUR 770 thousand (31 December 2019:
receivable of EUR 5 391 thousand).

25.2, Deferred Income Tax

For the deferred income tax calculation, the Company applied the income tax rate of 21% that has been
valid in Slovakia as of 1 January 2017,

As the Company expects no taxable profits against which temporary differences could be utilised in the
near future, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities were not recognised as at 31 Decermnber 2020
and 31 December 2019,

The amount of deductible temporary differences and tax losses for which no deferred tax asset and
deferred tax liability was recognised as at 31 December 2020 is EUR 208 194 thousand (31 December
2019: EUR 359 021 thousand).

The amount and year of possible deduction of unutilised tax losses, for which no deferred tax asset is
recognised:

Possible deduction of the tax loss in: 2021 2022 2023
Total tax losses 66 712 51 567 29 932

26. TAX EFFECTS IN THE STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Disclosure of tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive income:

At 31 December 2020 Before tax Tax After tax

Increase/{decrease) in financial investment revaluation

reserve - - o
Hedging derivatives {cash flow hedging) 69 649 = 69 649
Other 47 - 4/
Other comprehensive income for the period 69 606 s 69 696
At 21 December 2019 Before tax Tax After tax
Increasef(decrease) in financial investment revaluation

reserve L =
Hedging derivatives (cash flow hedging) (25 647) - (25 647)
Other (35) {35)
Other comprehensive income for the period (25 682) - {25 682)
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27. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Profit before tax 273 102 233 097
Adjustments for:
[Depreciation and amortisation 7 304 717
Interest loss/{income), net 1 662 2953
Income from financial investments (268 417) {340 386)
Derivatives 20 050 (19 316)
Provisions and other non-cash items (10 082) 11 663
Loss/{profit) from sale of non-current assets (6] {7
{Increase)/decrease in receivables and prepayments 34 817 30 697
{Increase)/decrease in inventories 105 943 (43 2607
Increase/{decrease) in trade and other payables {8 324} (31 802)
Cash flows from operating activities 156 049 {148 584)

28. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Capital Expenditure Commitments

As at 31 December 2020, capital expenditure of EUR 10 401 thousand (31 December 2019: EUR 1 673
thousand) had been committed under contractual arrangements for the acquisition of non-current assets
but were not recognised in the financial statements.

Operating Lease Arrangements — the Company as a lessee
Vehicles

The Company leases means of transport under an operating lease contract, The term of the framewaork
contract is until 31 December 2021, partial contracts have individual terms of lease and the Company
has rno option right to purchase the assets after the expiry of the |lease term,

Non-residential premises, land and movable assets
The Company leases non-residential premises and plots of land.

The carrying amounts of recognised assets from the right of use and movements during the period are
disclosed in Mote 7,

The carrying amounts of recognised lease liabilities and movements during the period are disclosed in
MNote 16.

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 510 4
Interest expense on lease liabilities 10 11
Expense relating to short-term leases -
Expense relating to leases of low-value assels - -
Variable lease payments . -
Total amount recognised in the income statement 520 475
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Operating leases - the Company as a lessor

The Company leases non-residential premises (approx. 67 600 m?}, land plots including external
carparks and movable assets. The annual lease revenues amount to approximately EUR 4 145 thousand
(2019: EUR 4 425 thousand). Leased non-residential premises, land and movable assets are recognised
by the Company on the balance sheet as investment property,

As the lease contracts are mostly concluded for an indefinite period , the Company discloses the future
minimum repayments of non-cancellable lease receivables only for the following period:

At 31 December At 321 December

Perlod 2020 2019

Within 1 year 4 458 4 376

MNatural Gas Purchase

The majority of natural gas purchases was supplied from the Russian Federation also in 2020. The
natural gas supplies were performed in line with the long-term agreement with Gazprom export LLC,

The natural gas purchase price from Gazprom export LLC is determined using the agreed price formula.

MNatural Gas Storage Contracts

The Company stores natural gas in underground storage facilities operated by NAFTA, a.s. that are used
for depositing and extracting natural gas as per seasonal demand, as well as for securing the supplies’
safely standard as required by law. The storage fee is set in individual storage contracts.

Gas and Electricity Sales Contracts

Composite natural gas and electricity supply contracts with small businesses and households define
products for which price lists are issued in accordance with the RONI's price decisions for the regulated
entity, 5PP as a natural gas and electricity supplier.

The sale of natural gas and electricity to medium- and large-sized customers is the subject matter of
composite gas supply contracts or gas supply contracts, composite electricity supply contracts or
electricity supply contracts with an assumed liability for a deviation, The contracts are usually agreed for
one or more years,

The prices agreed in the contracts usually comprise capacity and commodity components, The price for
distribution and other components is determined based on RONI's price decisions for distribution
companies and the market and transmission system operator.

Taxation

The Company has transactions with subsidiaries and associated companies and other related parties. The
tax envirenment in which the Company operates in the Slovak Republic is dependent on the prevailing
tax legislation and practice, with relatively little existing precedent. There Is an inherent risk that the tax
autherities may require an adjustment to the tax base, for example due to transfer pricing, or other
adjustments. The Lax authorities in the Slovak Republic have broad powers of interpretation of tax laws,
which, moreover, are often amended, which could result in unexpected results from tax inspections.

Litigation and Potential Losses

The Company is involved in a number of legal disputes relating to disputed bills of exchange and alleged
breaches of contracts. In addition to the bills of exchange and disputes described below, the Company is
also involved in other litigation arising in the normal course of business that is not expected, either
individually or in the aggregate, to have a significant adverse effect on the accompanying financial
statements. The final outcome of such litigation may result in liabilities higher than the provisions
recognised.
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Bills of exchahge

The management of the Company is aware of the existence of bills of exchange that were allegedly
signed by the former General Director of SPP prior to 1999, SPP announced publicly that it would
repudiate the wvalidity of these bills of exchange signed by the former General Director before the court,
on the basis of the suspicion that these bills are fraudulent and are in no way related to any contractual
relations of SPP.

At present, five (5) bills of exchange with principal totalling EUR 14 million are at various stages of legal
proceedings before courts in the Slovak Republic, In another ten (10) cases related ko bills of exchange
with principal totalling approximately EUR 169 million a final and binding court decision was made in
favour of SPP.

The management of SPP, following the advice of its legal counsel, defends the interests of the Company
in these cases by all legitimate means available. 5PP recorded a provision for potential losses related to
several bills of exchange. The amount of the provision has not been disclosed separately, as the
management of SPP believes that any such disclosure could seriously jeopardise the position of SPP in
the relevant litigation. These financial statements do not include any other provisions for potential losses
related to the bills of exchange as the final outcome of the remaining cases Is uncertain and cannot
currently be predicted.

Other litigations
SPP is a defendant in other litigations.

The amounts of the provisions and other information relating to these individual litigatiens have not been
disclosed separately as the management of SPP believes this could seriously jeopardise the position of
SPP in the disputes.

Legislative Conditions for Business Activities in the Energy Sector

Legal and Regulatory Framework for the Natural Gas and Electricity Supply Market in the Slovak Republic
in compliance with Slovak Legislation and European Union ("EU") Legislation

Act Mo, 25172012 Coll. on Energy (the “Energy Act”) and on Amendments to and Supplementation of
Certain Acts and Act No. 250/2012 Caoll. on Regulation in Metwork Industries (the “Act on Regulation”)
represent a basic legal framework for business in the energy sector.

Other generally binding legal regulations directly affecting the business activities of the company include
Act No. 321/2014 Z.z. on Energy Efficiency and on amendments to certain acts (the "Energy Efficiency
Act"} and Act no. 309/2009 Z.z. on the promotion of renewable energy sources and high-efficiency
production and on amendments Lo certain acts (the "RES Act”). The Energy Efficiency Act, among other
things, establishes a framework for rational use of energy, measures to promote and improve energy
efficiency, rights and obligations of persons in the field of energy efficiency and energy auditing, business
in the provision of energy services and introduces some new rules in providing information to end-users
and the monitoring system operator. The RES Act introduced a reform of the system of support for
electricity production from renewable energy sources and high-efficiency electricity and heat production
and introduced the institute of the buyer of electricity from these sources. With effect from 1 January
2020, SPP became the buyer of electricity for the entire territory of the Slovak Republic, based on the
results of the auction announced by the Ministry of Economy of the Slovak Republic.

The Furopean Green Convention and the adaptation of existing directives and regulations in the field of
energy, internal gas market, environmental protection, climate change and air protection, or transport
will have a significant impact on the Company's business in the future. The Integrated Mational Energy
and Climate Plan for 2021-2030 {("INECP")} is the main energy and climate strategy document at the
level of the Slovak Republic. Along with INECP, the Company's business aclivities will also be influenced
by other policies and strategies at the SR level {e.g. National Sustainable Development Slrategy, Slovak
Environmental Policy Strategy up to 2030) as well as the setting up of the Recovery and Resilience and
EU resources Plan under the new multiannual budget for 2021-2027, of which a significant share should
be allocated to projects aimed at improving the environment.

[he accompanying notes form an integral part of the separate financial statements. 43
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Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.

MOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

(EUR "000)

The Company is a wholesale energy market participant and is therefore obliged to comply with
obligations arising from Regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council No. 1227/2011 on the
Wholesale Energy Market Integrity and Transparency ("REMIT"). The obligations include compliance with
the obligation to disclose confidential information, prohibition of insider trading, prohibition of market
manipulation and the obligation to provide records of transactions on wholesale energy markets,
including orders to trade, to the Agency for Cooperation of Energy Regulators, Details related to data
reporting are regulated by Commission Implementing Regulation (EUY No. 1348/2014. The new
Regulation (EU)} 2017/1938 of the European Parliament and of the Council concermning measures to
safeguard the security of gas supply entered into force on 1 November 2017. The major changes include
a greater application of the regional principle, the extension of information obligations for utility
companies regarding gas supply contracts which may have an impact on safeguarding the security of gas
supply, and the introduction of a solidarity mechanism among EU Member States.

In addition to the above European and national generally binding legal regulations, the legislative
conditions for businesses operating in the energy sector are also affected by legal regulations applicable
te the following areas: protection of personal data [(Regulation (EU) 2016/679 of the European
Parliament and of the Council on the protection of natural persons with regard to the processing of
personal data and on the free movement of such data ("GDPR"), Act No. 18/2018 Coll. on Personal Data
Protection, Act No. 351/2011 Coll. on Electronic Communications)], free access to information {Act No.
21172000 Coll. on Free Access to Information and on Amendment to and Supplementation of Certain
Acts) ("Info Act”), conclusion of contracts in the public sector (Act No. 315/2016 Coll. on Register of
Public Sector Partners and on Amendment to and Supplementation of Certain Acts) ("RPSP Act”),
consumer rights protection (Act MNo. 250/2007 Coll. on Consumer Protection) and trading en the financial
instruments market (MIFID II Directive 2014/65/EU) or Act MNo. 566/2001 Coll. on Securities and
Investment Services, Regulation (EU) 600/2014 on markets in financial instruments (MIFIR), Regulation
(EU} 596/2014 on market abuse, Directive 2014/57/EU on criminal sanctions for market abuse (CSMAD),
Regulation (EU) 648/2012 on OTC derivatives, central counterparties and trade repositories (EMIRY) and
also in the field of fighting against money laundering (Act Mo. 297/2008 Coll. on protection against
terrorist financing and on amendments to certain acts), or in the field of so called "Whistleblowing” {Act
MNo. 54/2019 Coll. on the protection of whistle-blowers of anti-social activities and on amendments to
certain acts).

Price Regulation

The basic framework in the price regulation of gas and electricity supplies is stipulated by the Act on
Regulation. 2017 was the first year of the new 2017 - 2021 requlation period. The regulation policy was
published on 9 March 2016 and extended, inter alia, the scope of price regulation for household gas
supply. In 2017, gas supplies to households, gas supplies to small businesses (with an annual
consumption of up to 100 thousand kWh/year), gas supplies to suppliers of last resort, electricity
supplies to households, electricity supplies to small businesses (with an annual consumption of up to 30
thousand kWh/year} and heat production, distribution and supply continue to be subject to price
regulation.

Price regulation in the above areas is governed by implementing legal regulations, namely RONI Decree
Mo, 22372016 Coll. on price regulation in the gas industry, RONI Decree No. 248/2016 Coll. on price
regulation in the heat-power industry, Decree No. 260/2016 Coll. on price regulation in the electricity
sector and certain conditions regarding the conduct of regulated activities in the heat-power industry that
were replaced by RONI Decree Mo. 18/2017 Coll. in connection with the large increase in electricity
distribution prices for certain groups of customers.

On Movember 10, 2020, the RONI Regulatory Board adopted the amendment to the Regulatory Policy
2017 - 2021, The subject of the amendment is predominantly the extension of the regulatory period by
1 year, i.e. by the end of 2022. In accordance with the amendment, the RONI should, among other
things, enforce the simplification of the submission of price proposals and also predict an analysis of the
possibility of cancellation, or reducing the scope of price regulation in the area of gas supply, In
accordance with the addendum, support for the use of biomethane in energy and transport has also been
added to the list of priorities of regulatory policy for the upcoming regulatory period in the gas industry,
Following the amendment, during the year 2021 the RONI should prepare proposals for amendments Lo
the decrees regulating the price regulation.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the ‘:i[:j)r‘;;k; financial statermnents. 44
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Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2020
(EUR "000)

The compensation of the members of the Company's bodies and executive management was as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

Remuneration to members of the Board of Directors, Supervisory Board,
executive management and former members of the Company's bodies, tatal 1043 912

OF which:
Board of Directors and executive management
Supervisory Board

a8 748
144 164

Benefits after the employment termination to members of the Board of
Directors, Supervisory Board, executive management and to former members

of the Company’s bodies, total
OF wiich;
Board of Directors and executive managerment

Other long-term benefits to members of the Board of Directors, Supervisory
Board, executive management and to farmer members of the Company's

bodies, tokal
OF which:
Beard of Directors and executive management

Benefits after the employment termination to members of the Board of
Directars, Supervisory Board, executive management and to former members

of the Company’s bodies, total
OF which:
Board of Lirectors and executive management

Benefits in kind to members of the Board of Directars, Supervisory Board,
executive management and to former members of the Company's bodies, total 49 42

OFf which:
Board of Divectors and executive managamert
Supenrvisory Board

49 42

30. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION TO COMPLY WITH OTHER STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS

FOR SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a) Members of the Company's Bodies

Body Function Name
Board of Directors Chairman Ing. Milan Urban since 24 June 2020
Chairman Ing. Jan Valko until 23 June 2020
Wice-Chairman Ing. Richard Prokypéak since 24 June 2070
Vice-Chalrman Ing. Rudolf Slezdk until 23 June 2020
Member Mar, Henrich Krejéi since 24 June 2020
Member Ing. Daniel Sulik, C5c. since 24 June 2020
Member Ing. Milan Hargag until 23 June 2020
Member Ing. Jan Szalay until 23 June 2020
Member Ing. Ivan Gransky
Supervisory Board Chairman Dr. h. c. Ing. Tibor Mikus, PhD.
Member Ing. Robert Maguth until 17 June 2020
Member Ing. Michal Durkowvic
Mermber Viera Uhrova
Member Ing. MiloE Dando
Member Myr. Iveta Barancova since 11 September 2020
Mamber Norbert Lojko, MBA since 11 September 2020
Member JUDr. Martin Javoriek, MBA since 11 September 2020
Member Mgr. Peter Rakovsky since 11 September 2020
Member PhDr. Zuzana RuZekovd since 18 June 2020
Member JUDF, Matus BuSniak until 10 September 2020
Member JUDr, Peter Drac until 10 September 2020
Member Ing. Dionyz Kaszonyi until 10 September 2020
The accompanying netes form an integral part of the separate financial statements. 40
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Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

(EUR '000)

Body
Executive

Function

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Executive Officer

Director of the Business Development
Division

Director of the Equity Management
Division

Director of Finance Division

Director of Corporate Matters Division

Director of the Internal Services
Division

Director of the Sales Division

Executive Director

Name

Ing. Richard Prokypéak since 10 August 2020,
entrustad with the performance of the function of
Chief Executive Dfficer since 30 June 2020 until 9
August 2020

Ing. Stefan Sabik until 29 June 2020

Ing. Juraj Mibal since 01 September 2020

Mgr. Peter Kufera since 01 September 2020

Ing. Mireslav Jankovi€ since 1 September 2020
Mgr, Tamas Niepel, LLM. since 01 September 2020

Ing. Markusek Adridn since 01 October 2020

Ing. Miroslay Mital since 01 September 2020
Ing. Richard Proleypédk until 09 August 2020

b) Consolidated Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2020, SPP provided consolidated financial information as a consolidated reporting
entity for higher consolidation to the Ministry of Economy of the Slovak Republic, with its registerad seat
at Miynské nivy 44/a, 827 15 Bratislava.

The ultimate reporting entity that consolidates SPP as at 31 December 2020 is the Ministry of Finance of
the Slovak Republic.

The consolidated and separate financlal statements are published on the Company’s website
{www,spp.sk).

The consolidated and separate financial statements of SPP published In periods before 31 December
2013 were published in the Commercial Journal and filed with the Commercial Register of Bratislava 1
District Court (Zahradnicka 10, 812 44 Bratislava). The consolidated and separate financial statements of
SPP and its subsidiaries and assoclated companies in the period after 1 January 2014 are filed and
published with the Register of Financial Statements for entities based in the Slovak Republic and in the
Collection of Deeds (Shirka listin) for entities based in the Czech Republic. The consolidated and separate
financial statements of subsidiaries, joint ventures and assoclated companies for the periods until 31
December 2013 and of companies based outside the Slovak Republic are available at the relevant Courts
of Records accarding to their registered offices.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the separate financial statements. a7
This is an English language translation of the original Slovak language document.



Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.
MOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

(EUR '000) B
31. POST-BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

No events occurred after 31 December 2020 that would have a material impact on the Company's
financial statements.

As at 26 November 2020, Slovensky plyndrensky priemysel, a.s. and CEZ Slovensko, s.r.o. have signed
Framework agreement on the sale of a part of an enterprise, where the subject is the takeover of an
independent, functionally and economically separate part of the enterprise CEZ Slovensko, s.r.o. focused
on the supply of electricity and natural gas, especially for businesses, municipalities and organizations.
As at 23 February 2021 The Antimonopoly Office of the Slovak Republic issued a decision approving the
concentration consisting of the acquisition of direct sole control of the company Slovensky plyndrensky
priemysel, a.s. over the part of the company CEZ Slovensko, s.r.0.. The decision of the Antimonopoly
Office is effective from 24 February 2021.

As at 10 December 2020 the shareholder agreement between companies Slovensky plynarensky
priemysel, a.s., CEZ ESCO, a.s. and CEZ, a. s. has been signed, concerning the joint enterprise in the
market for the provision of energy services. As at 18 December 2020, the Antimonopaoly Office approved
the establishment of the joint enterprise of SPP and CEZ with no exception. The decision is effective from
2 January 2021. The transaction was realised as at 1 February 2021- this is also the date when the
general meeting of the joint enterprise took place. The General meeting decided to issue new shares,
which were subsequently subscribed by SPP.

PR i Signature of a member of Signature of the person
o 4 the statutory body of the responsible for the Signature of the person
10 March 2021 reporting entity or a natural preparation of the responsible for
person acting as a reporting financial statements: bookkeeping:
entity:
"4
Approved on: / )
L oltan LaszIa
Chief Fingncial Officer Directar/of Accounting and
Taxes Department
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the separate financial statements. 48
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholder, Supervisory Board, Board of Directors and to the Audit Committee of Slovensky
plynarensky priemysel, a.s..

Report on the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s. and its
subsidiaries ('the Group'), which comprise the consoclidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020,
consolidated income statement, consclidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statermnent of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes
to the conselidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by EU {'IFRS EU").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ('1SAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Act on Statutory Audit No 423/2015 Coll. and on amendments to the Act on
Accounting No 431/2002 Coll., as amended by later legislation ('the Act on Statutory Audit’) related to
ethics, including Auditor's Code of Ethics, that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, and we have fulfilled other requirements of these provisions related to ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consclidated financial statements that give true
and fair view in accordance with IFRS EU, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reparting process.

THIS IS A TRANSLATION OF THE ORIGINAL SLOVAK REPORT
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Stalements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concerm.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial staterments
including the presented information as well as whether the consolidated financial statements
captures the underlying transactions and events in a manner that leads to their fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
the business within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
\We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

THIS IS A TRANSLATION OF THE ORIGINAL SLOVAK REFORT
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Report on Information Disclosed in the Annual Report

Management is responsible for the information disclosed in the annual report, prepared based on
requirements of the Act on Accounting No 431/2002 Coll,, as amended by later legislation {'the Act on
Accounting’). Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements expressed above does not apply to
other information contained in the annual report.

In connection with audit of the consolidated financial statements it is our responsibility to understand the
information disclosed in the annual report and to consider whether such information is not materially
inconsistent with audited consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

We considered whether the Group’s annual report contains information, disclosure of which is required
by the Act on Accounting.

Based on procedures performed during the audit of consolidated financial statements, in our opinion:

- Information disclosed in the annual report prepared for 2020 is consistent with the consolidated
financial statements for the relevant year,

- The annual report contains information based on the Act on Accounting.

Additionally, based on our understanding of the Group and its situation, obtained in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements, we are required to disclose whether material misstatements were
identified in the annual report, which we received prior to the date of issue of this auditor’s report. In this
regard, there are no findings which we should disclose.

19 March 2021
Bratislava, Slovak Republic

Ernst & Young Slovakia, spol. s 1.0,
SKAU Licence No. 257

Ing. Dalimil Draganovsky, statutory auditor
SKAU Licence No. 893
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Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019
{in thousand EUR)

Note 31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ASSETS:
MON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investment property o 23939 24 262
Land, property, plant and equipment 8 6o 928 6B 410
Investments recognised using the equity method i 1318 B3O 1 259 720
Other investments 30 11
Mon-current intangible assets 10 11-959 11 297
Other non-current assets . S A78 5 746
Total non-current assets 1431 454 1 369 446
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 11 04 175 201 646
Receivables and prepayments 12 290 174 373572
Income tax assets 26 - 5391
Cash and cash eguivalents 251236 175912
Total current assets 635 585 756 521
Mon-current assets held for sale — . 4 385 4378
TOTAL ASSETS 2071 424 2 130 345 _
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES:
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Registered capital 19 BES5 062 285 062
Legal and other reserves 20 1203 620 1 201 548
Hedging reserve 20 {7 894 (47 964)
Retained earnings (286 230} (382 380)
Share in equity attributable to SPP's shareholders 1 794 558 1 656 266
Minarity interests of other owners of subsidiaries - i
Total equity 1 794 558 1 G656 266
MNON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred income 15 22 23
Provisions 14 35 882 37 387
Long-term loans 15 — -
Retirement and other long-term employee benefits 13 1070 1 070
Defarred tax lability = #
Cther non-current labilities 17 948 9313
Total non-current liabilities 44 922 47 793
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 18, 17 219 325 320 351
Short-term loans 15 1373 84 909
Tax liabilities from income tax 26 70 .
Provisions and other current liabilities 14 10 476 21 026
Total current liabilities 231 944 o 426 286
Total liabilities 276 BGo 474 079
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2071424 2 130 345

The financial statements on pages 4 to 48 were signed on 10 March 2021 on behalf of the Board of

Directors:
v
In ilan Urban |
Chairman ¢Fthe Board of Directors

Ihe accompanying noetes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
This is an English language translation of the original Slovak language document.

. Richard Prokypédk
Vice-Chairman' of the Board of Directors
and Chief Executive Officer
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Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019

{in thousand EUR)

Revenues from contracts with customers
Other gains and losses

Own work capitalised

Purchases of natural gas, electricity and consumables and
services

Depreciation and amortisation

Storage of natural gas and other services

Staff costs

Prowisions for bad and doubtful receivables, net

Provisions and impairment losses, net

Operating profit

Gain/{loss) on investments

Share in profit of associated undertakings and joint ventures
Finance costs

Profit/(loss) before income taxes

Income tax
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

Met profit attributable to:

SPP shareholders

Minority interests of other owners of subsidiaries
Total

Note

21

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
1 238 979 1189611
10 601 12 637
1587 1794
(1127 118) {1 151 923)
(7 538) (B 028)
{84 903} (105 610)
{29 495) (29 453)
4 388 {11 610)
613 [2021)
7114 (105 501}
155 512
355117 339 876
{2 197} {4 400}
360 189 230 487
(14 039) (12 264)
346 150 218 223
346 150 218 223
346 150 218 223
o

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated ﬁnaﬁdal statements.
This is an English language translation of the original Slavak language document.



Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019
{in thousand EUR)

Year ended Year ended
Note 31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Met profit for the period 346 150 218 223
Other comprehensive income (may be reclassified to 37
profit or loss in the future): 42 095 (9 B24)
Movemnent in FX translation reserve - impact from the
consolidation of the subsidiary and the share from the
associated company 2025 523
Decrease in the revaluation reserve due to changes in falr
valug = -
Hedging derivatives (Cash flow hedging): 32 420 {6 267)
Gains {losses) for the period 69 649 (25 647)
Gains (losses) for the period - the share from the
associated company (37 229) 19 380
Deferred tax related to itemns of other comprehensive income
reclassified to profit or loss in the future - the share from
the associated company 7 650 4 D80}
oOther comprehensive income (not reclassified to profit
or loss in the future): 27 a7 (35}
Change in the liability for employee benefits 47 {35)
Deferred tax related to items of other comprehensive income
not reclassified to profit or loss in the future = -
Other net comprehensive income for the period 42 142 (9 B59)
Total net comprehensive income/ (loss) for the period i 388 292 208 364
Met comprehensive income attributable to:
SPP shareholders iga 292 208 364
Minority interests of other owners of subsidiaries ) - o
Total 388 292 208 364
The accompanying notes form ;:;1 integral part of L-I:u; consalidated financial EEELI{:HL‘-. 7

This is an English language transiation of the original Slovak language document.
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Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
Years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019

(in thousand EUR)

Operating activities

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest paid

Interest received

{Income tax paid)/Tax overpayments refunded

Met cash flows from operating activities

Investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from the sale of land, property, plant and eguipmeant

and intangible assets
Dividends received

Met cash inflow/ {outflow) from investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from interest-bearing borrowings

Expenses for interest-bearing borrowings
Dividends paid

Payment of principal portien of lease liabilities
Other proceeds and expenditures from financial activities, net

Met cash fows from financing activities

Met {decrease) fincrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Effects of foreign exchange fluctuations

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Dividends received

Short-term loan

Total liabilities from financing
activities

Dividends received

Short-term loan

Total liabilities from financing
activities

Year ended Year ended
Note 21 December 31 December
2020 2019
28 156 643 {167 B36}
{3 593} (3 653}
188 567
{7 861) (14 764
145 377 (185 686)
(4 217) {2 689
14 13
- 29 906
{4 203) 27 230
269 790 340 386
(B5 000) -
20 (250 000) (376 000)
17 (582) (528}
) (4] (718}
(65 832) (36 8e0)
75 342 {195 316)
175912 371 220
(18) B
= 251 236 175912
Non-cash Non-cash 31
a1 D;;;;jbnr Cazh-flow change - change - December
proceeds affset 2020
- {268 417} 268 417 H
- 269 790 L {268 417) 1373
- 269790 _ (268 417) - 1373
Non-cash Non-cash 31
e D;;;:;:her Cash-flow change - change -  December
proceeds offset 20158
(29 906) 79 906 {340 386) 340 386 m
340 386 - (340 386) -
{29 906) 370 292 (340 386) - -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
This is an English language translation of the original Slevak language document.
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Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
¥ear ended 31 December 2020
(in thousand EUR)

1. GENERAL
1.1. General Information

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 have been prepared by
Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s. [("SPP"} and its subsidiaries and associated undertakings (the
"Group”) in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) as adopted by the
European Union (the "EU"). The reporting currency of the Group is the Euro (EUR). The consolidated
financial statements were prepared under the going-concern assumption,

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 have been prepared
pursuant to Article 22 of Act No. 431/2002 Coll. on Accounting, as amended, for the reporting period
from 1 January 2020 until 31 December 2020.

SPP (formerly Slovensky plyndrensky priemysel, 5, p.) was founded on 21 December 1988 by
a Memerandum of Association as a 100% state-owned enterprise in Slovakia. On 1 July 2001, SPP was
transformed into a joint-stock company (akciovd spolofnost) that was 100% owned by the National
Property Fund of the Slovak Republic. The Government of the Slovak Republic became the 100% owner
of SPPin 2014.

SFP is the largest and most important Slovak energy supplier. In the area of gas supply, it directly
follows the 165-year tradition of the Slovak gas industry and since 2012 it has also been operating on
the electricity supply market, SPP guarantees reliable, safe and competitive gas and electricity supplies
and related services in all regions of Slovakia, The company successfully supplies natural gas and
electricity to more than 1.3 million consumption points. In addition to energy supply, SFP also provides
energy services and energy smart solutions. At the same time, SPP also acts as an electricity purchaser
in support of the production of electricity produced from renewable eneray sources and high-efficiency
combined production.

SPP is 100% owner of the company SPP CZ, a.s. with registered address in the Czech Republic, whose
main business activity is the purchase and sale of natural gas and electricity, At the same time, SPP is
also 100% owner of the company SPP CNG s.r.o., which sells compressed natural gas., SPP also owns
51% non-controlling interest in the company SPP Infrastructure, a.s. (see Note 5 and Note 7L

Identification number (I€0) 35 815 256
Tax identification number (DIE) 2020259802

On 6 May 2020, the Annual General Meeting approved the 2019 consolidated financial statements of SPP,

1.2. Principal Activities

The sale of natural gas and electricity in Slovakia and the Crech Republic has been the core activity since
May 2014,

1.3. Employees

The average number of SPP employees for the year ended 31 December 2020 was 715, of which 10
represented the executive management (for the year ended 31 December 2019: 721, of which §
represented the executive management).

The actual number of full-time employees as at 31 December 2020 was 721 {as at 31 December 2019:
717).

1.4. Registered Address
Miynskeé nivy 44/a

B25 11 Bratislava
Slovakia

These notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements., 10
This is an English language translation of the original Slovak language document,



Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020
{in thousand EUR)

2, NEW INTERNATIONAL FINAMCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND CHANGES IN
ESTIMATES

2.1. Application of New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has adopted all of the new and revised standards and interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) of the IASB that have been endorsed for use in the European Union
{hereinafter the "EU"), and that are relevant to its operations and effective for annual periods beginning
on 1 January 2020,

Initial application of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and new
interpretations effective for the current reporting period

The following standards and amendments to the existing standards and new interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by the EU are effective for the current
reporting period:

. Amendments to References to the IFRS Conceptual Framework - adopted by the EU on
79 November 2019 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 20207,

« Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” and IAS 8 “Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” - Definition of term “Significant” -
adopted by the EU on 29 November 2019 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020},

« Amendments to IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, IAS 39 "Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” and IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” -
Reference interest rate reform - adopted by the EU on 15 January 2020 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020},

« Amendments to IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” - Definition of a Business - adopted by the EU
on 21 April 2020 (related to business combinations for which the acquisition date is first or any
subsequent day in the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 and to
asset acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that period),

« Amendments to IFRS 16 "Leases” Covid 19 - adopted by the EU on 9 October 2020 (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020),

The adoption of these standards and amendments to the existing standards and new interpretations has
not led to any material changes in the Group’s financial statements.

Standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations issued by IASB and
adopted by the EU, but not yet effective

AL the date of authorization of these financial statements, the following new standards and amendments
to existing standards and interpretations issued by IASB and adopted by the EU are not yet effective:

« Amendments to IFRS 4 “Insurance contracts” - adopted by the EU on 15 December 2020
{effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021);

« Amendments to IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, IAS 39 ™“Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” , IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”, IFRS 4
“Insurance contracts” and IFRS 16 "Leases” - Reference interest rate reform - Phase 2 -
adopted by the EU on 13 January 2021 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021).

The Group has elected not to adopt these new standards and amendments to the existing standards
and new interpretations in advance of their effective dates. The Group anticipates that the adoption of
these new standards, amendments to the existing standards and new interpretations will have no
material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application.

These notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statemeants. 11
This Is an English language transiation af the ariginal Slovak language document,



Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020
(in thousand EUR)

New standards and amendments to the existing standards issued by TASE but not yet adopted
by the EU

At present, IFRS as adopted by the EU do not significantly differ from regulations adopted by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) except for the following new standards and
amendments to the existing standards , which were not endorsed for use in the EU as at the reporting
date (effective dates stated below are for IFRS in fully:

« IFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral Accounts” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016) - the European Commission has decided not to launch the endorsement process of
this interim standard and to wait for the final standard;

« IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023);

= Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” - Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Mon-current - postponement of the effective date (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023);

* Amendments to IFRS 3 "“Business Combinations”, IAS 16 “Property, Plant and
Equipment”, IAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” and
amendments to various standards due to “IFRS quality improvement project (cycle 2018
= 2020" - resulting from the annual IFRS guality improvement project, the main aim of which is
to eliminate inconsistencies and clarify the wording (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022);

= Amendments to IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28 "Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures” - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture and further amendments (effective date deferred indefinitely until the
research project on the equity method has been concluded).

The Group anticipates that the adoption of these standards and amendments to the existing standards
will have no material impact on the Group’s financial statements in the period of initial application.

Hedge accounting for a portfolio of financial assets and liabilities whose principles have not been adopted
by the EU remains unchanged.

According to the Group’s estimates, the application of hedge accounting to a portfolio of financial assets
or liabilities pursuant to IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recoanition and Measurement” would not
significantly impact the financial statements if applied as at the balance sheet date.

These notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. T
This is an English language translation of the original Slovak language document.



Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

(in thousand EUR)

3. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU,
IFRS relevant to the SPP Group, as adopted by the EU, do not significantly differ from IFRS as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASE).

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the
certain financial instruments. The principal accounting policies adopted are detailed below. The
accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect certain adjustments and reclassifications not
recorded in the accounting records of certain Group companies in order to conform the Slovak statutory
and other financial statements to financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by
the ELU.

b) Business Combinations
(1) Subsidiaries

Those business undertakings in which SPP, directly or indirectly, has an interest of usually more than one
half of the voting rights or otherwise has power to exercise control over the operations are defined as
subsidiary undertakings (subsidiaries) and have been fully consolidated. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which effective control is transferred to SPP and they are no longer consolidated from
the date when such control ceases.

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
awners of the acquiree and the interests in equity issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Due to the insignificance, SPP decided not to include the following accounting subsidiaries in the
consolidation - SPP CNG s.r.o., SPP Foundation, EkeFend, n.f., EF Monprofit, ENRA SERVICES s.r.o. SPP
believes that the non-consolidation of these subsidiaries does net hawve a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Non-consolidated subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment. The adjusted value of such subsidiaries
is presented in Other investments.,

Identifiable acquired assels and assumed liabilities are recognised at fair value as at the acquisition date,
except for:

« Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements,
which are recognised and measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and 1AS 19 Employee
Benefits, respectively;

« Liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acguiree, or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree, which are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date; and

s Assets (or disposal groups of assets and liabilities) that are classified as held for sale in accordance
with IFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, which are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously-held equity interest in
the acquiree over the net of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquires and the fair value
of the acquirer's previously-held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

These notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 13
This is an English language Lranslation of the original Slovak language decument.



Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

(in thousand EUR)

Mon-controlling interests that represent the existing equity securities and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liguidation may initially be measurcd
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportional share in the acquiree’s identifiable net
assefs. The selection of the measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of nen-contrelling interest are measured at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
other IFRS.

When a business combination is carried out in stages, the Group's previously-held interest jn the
acquiree Is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (ie the date when the Group obtains control)
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

Business combinations that took place prior to 1 January 2010 were accounted for in accordance with the
previous version of IFRS 3.

Goodwill arising on consolidation is recognised as an asset and represents the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiablo assets, liabilities, and
contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost, is subsequently not depreciated and is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if there is
an indication that it may be impaired. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

All transactions, balances, and unrealised profits and losses on transactions within the Group have been
eliminated upon consolidation.

{2}  Investments in Associated Undertakings
Financial investments in associated undertakings are accounted for using the equity method.

Associated undertakings are entities in which SPP exercises substantial, but not controlling, influence,
Owing to their impairment, a provision is recorded,

When applying the equity method, investments in associated undertakings are recognised in the balance
sheet at cost adjusted for subsequent changes in the Group's share in the net assets of an associated
undertaking. Goodwill related to associated undertakings is recognised in the carrying amount of an
investment and is not depreciated. The income statement reflects a share in the associated undertakings’
operating results. If a change occurs that was recognised directly in the associated undertakings’ equity,
the Group will recognise its share in such change and if necessary, recognise it in the statement of
changes in equity. Profits and losses from transactions between the Group and associated undertakings
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in associated undertakings.

c) Financial Assets

The Group recognises and classifies financial assets in accordance with IFRS 9 “Financial Instrument”
which superseded IAS 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” with effect from
1 January 2018,

Financial assets are classified in the following categories: financial assels subsequently measurad at
amoartised cost, financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL).

Although the permitted measurement of financial assets at amortised cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income and at fair value through profit or loss is similar to the measurement under
IAS 39, the criteria for classification into the corresponding categories are different.

The Group recognises financial assets subsequently measured at amortised cost and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss,

These notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial slaLc-nm_-u-n,s, 14
This is an English language translation of the original Slovak language document.



Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020
{in thousand EUR)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amertised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

i} The assets are held in a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

iy The contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at FYTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is either held for trading or designated
as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasuremeant
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset. Financial assets classified as at FYTPL mainly include agreements
on the purchase or sale of commodities not meeting the measurement exception under IFRS 9 and
financial derivatives concluded to ensure economic hedging to which the hedge accounting was not
applied.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables
when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

For the impairment of loan receivables, the Group applies a three-stage model of excepted credit lossas
(ECL). Under this model, an immediate impairment loss in an amount equal to a 12-month expected
credit loss is recognised upon the initial recognition of the financial assets. If there is a significant
increase of the credit risk, a provision is estimated based on expected credit losses for the full lifetime of
financial assets, not only based on the 12-month expected credit loss.

For trade receivables and current receivables, the Group applies a simplified model for the assessment
and recognition of impairment losses on financial assets under which a provision is recognised in the
amount of expected credit losses over the full lifetime of trade receivables at the moment af their initial
recognition. Such estimates are revised as at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of the financlal asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through a provision
account. When a trade recelvable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the provision
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the provision
account, Changes in the carrying amount of the provision account are recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity,

d) Financial Liabilities

Financial liahbilities are classified as elther financial liabilities *at FYTRL' or ‘other financial liabilities".

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading, is a derivative
instrument or is designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liahilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arlsing on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid
on the financlal liability and is included in the *Finance costs' line in profit or loss.

These nates ferm an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 15
lhis ks an English language translation of the original Slovak language document,



Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

(in thousand EUR)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest, gains and losses on the translation of foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) throuah
the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities only when the Group's obligations are met, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the consideration paid
and the amount payable is recognised in the income statement,

el Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group enters inte a number of derivative contracts in order to manage the risk of changes in
commodity prices and interest rates and the foreign exchange risk, including forward currency contracts
and interest rate and commaodity swaps and other derivative contracts, eg futures.

Derivative financial instruments are contracts: (i) whose value changes in response to a change in one or
more identifiable variables; (ii) that require no significant net initial investment: and (i} that are settled
at a certain future date, Derivative financial instruments, therefore, include swaps, futures, and firm
commitments to buy or sell non-financial assets that include the physical delivery of the underlying
assets, except for contracts intended for their own use (the so-called own use exemption).

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature
of the hedge relationship.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates hedging instruments that include derivatives, embedded derivatives and non-
derivatives in respect of foreign currency risk as either fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of
net investments in foreign operations. Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are
accounted for as cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity decuments the relationship between the hedging
instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for
undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an angoing
basis, the entily documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in
fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are
recognised in profit or loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset
ar liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the hedging instrument
and the change in the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in profit or loss in the
line item relating to the hedged item,

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, when the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. The fair-value adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the
hedged risk is amortised Lo profit or loss from that date,
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In the event that a financial derivate does not meet or no lenger meets the requirements for hedge
accounting, changes in the fair value are directly recognised in the income statement as "Mark-tao-
market” or as “Mark-to-market on commodity contracts other than trading instruments” in ordinary
operating income from derivative financial instruments with noen-financial assets as the underlying
assets, and in financial revenues or expenses in the case of currency, interest rate or equity derivatives.,
Derivative financial instruments used by the Group for trading activities with own energy and energy on
behalf of customers, and other derivative financial instruments that are due in less than 12 manths are
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position as current assets or current liabilities, while
derivative financial instruments due after this period are classified as non-current items,

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash
flow hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are recognised
as follows:

+ If an expected hedged transaction subseguently leads to the recognition of a non-financial asset
or a non-financial liability, or if an expected hedged transaction with a non-financial asset or a non-
financial liability becomes a firm commitment, the amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income
are derecognised and directly included in the initial measurement of such an asset or liability,

«  For other instances, amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income are reclassified from
the hedging reserve ta profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or loss in
the same income statement line as the recognised hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, when the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting, Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at
that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in
profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in
equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

) Land, Property, Plant and Equipment, and Intangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment ("non-current assets”) and intangible assets were recognized at cost net
of accumulated depreciation. Cost includes all costs attributable to placing the non-current asset into
seryice for its intended use.

Items of property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets that are retired or otherwise disposed of
are removed from the balance sheet at the net book walue. Any gain or loss resulting from such
retirernent or disposal is included in the income statement,

Other items of property, plant, and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives. Depreciation is charged to the income statement computed so as to amortise the cost of the
assels to their estimated residual values over their residual useful lives.

The useful lives of non-current assets used are as follows:

2020 2019
Buildings and structures 30 - 40 30 - 40
Right of use of leasod premises 5=10 5 =10
Plant and machinery i-15 3+~15
Right of use of vehicles 5 5
Fixtures and fittings B-15 B-15
Software — tangible 3-4 3 -4
Other non-current tangible assets a8 g

Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite useful life.

Intangible assets with limited useful lives that are acquired separately are recognised at cost |ess
accumulated amortisation and accumulated Impairment losses, Estimated useful lives are re-assessed at
the end of each reporting period.
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The useful lives of intangible assets can be summarised as follows:

2020 2019
Software 4 - 10 4 - 10
Cther non-current intangible assets 4 -10 4 - 10

At each reporting date, an assessment is made as to whether there is any indication that the realisable
value of the Group’s non-current assets is less than the carrying amount. When such an indication
occurs, the realisable value of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs of disposal
and the present value of future cash flows ("value-in-use”), is estimated. The resulting impairment loss
provision is recognised in full in the income statement in the year in which the impairment occurs. The
discount rates used to calculate the present value of the future cash flows reflect the current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset, In the event that a decision is
made to abandon a construction project in progress or to significantly postpone its planned completion
date, the carrying amount of the asset is reviewed for potential impairment and a provision recorded, if
appropriate.

Expenditures relating to an itemn of non-current assets after being placed into service are added to the
carrying amount of the asset when it Is probable that future economic henefits, in excess of the original
assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will flow bo the enterprise. All other expenditures
are Lreated as repairs and maintenance and are expensed in the period in which they are incurred,

g) Investment Property

Investment property that is held to generate rental income is initially recognised at cost inclusive of costs
related to acquisition. Investment properties are subsequently recognised at historical cost. The Group
does not apply any revaluation model for such assets,

h) Research and Development

Costs of research and development are charged to expenses except for expenses incurred for
development projects that are recognized as non-current intangible assets of an expected economic
benefit. Development costs that were expensed in the year in which they were incurred are not
subsequently capitalized in the following reporting periods.

i) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of natural gas stored in
underground storage facilities and raw materials is calculated using the weighted arithmetic average
method. The cost of natural gas and raw materials includes the cost of acquisition and related costs, and
the cost of inventories developed internally includes materials, other direct costs, and production
overheads, Other costs related to the acquisition of natural gas also include the effect of hedging. The
positive impact of hedging, i.e. profit from the settlement of derivative operations, reduces the valuation
of natural gas in the underground storage facilities and vice versa, the negative impact of hedging, i.e.
loss from the settlement of derivative operations increases the wvaluation of natural gas in the
underground storage facilities,

A provision in the required amount is recorded for inventories if there is an indication of their
impairment,

The Group separately recognises natural gas held for trading, which is remeasured to fair value as at the
reporting date. Changes in the fair value of natural gas held for trading are recognised directly in profit
or loss.

i) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and cash in bank, and highly-liquid securities with
insignificant risk of changes in value and original maturities of three months or less from the date of
issue.

k) Dividends

Dividends are recognized in equity in the peried in which they were approved. The payment of dividends
to the S5PP's sharchelder Is recognized as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends were approved by the SPP’'s shareholder,
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)] Accounting for Government Grants

Received government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and that any conditions attached to the grant will be met. If the government grant relates to the
settlement of costs, it is recognised as income over the period required for a systematic compensation of
the grant with related costs for the settlement of which the grant is intended. If the government grant
relates to the acquisition of non-current assets, it is recognised as deferred income and recognised in the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the relevant asset. The
government grants are recognised in the balance sheet using a deferred income method.

m) Provisions for Liabilities

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. The amount of the
provision is the present value of the risk-adjusted expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation.

The applied discount rate reflects the current market expectations regarding the time value of money
and risks specific to the relevant liability. Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of the
provision increases in each period to reflect the unwinding of the discount by the passage of time,

n) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they incurred, except for borrowing
costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of the relevant non-current
assets. Such borrowing costs are recognized as part of the cost of such assets until they are placed into
service.

o) Recognition of Revenues from Contracts with Customers

Revenues from contracts with customers are recognised upon the delivery of goods or services net of
value added tax and discounts at a peint in time or over a certain time period in accordance with IFRS 15
in order to disclose the transfer of goods or services to customers in amounts that reflect the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for such goods or services,

Revenues from the sale of natural gas and revenues from the sale of electricity are recognised at the
moment the commadity is supplied to the customer based on the actually measured or estimated energy
consumption at the agreed price.

P) Other Gains and Losses

The Group recognises other gains that de not meet the requirements of the new standard, IFRS 15
"Revenue from Contracts with Customers” and the corresponding losses in profit or loss on a net basis.
Other gains and losses include the result of trading activities and the sale of a commadity with physical
delivery falls under the scope of IFRS 9, gains and losses on the sale of assets and raw materials, other
taxes and charges, FX differences from operating activities and other operating profits and losses. The
Group recognises the result of trading activities on a net basis after the recognition of purchases or sales
and the remeasurement of open positions.

qal Social Security and Pension Schemes

The Group is required to make contributions te varlous mandatory government insurance schemes,
together with contributions by employees. The cost of social security payments |s charged to the income
statement in the same period as the related salary cost.

r) Retirement and Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

The Group has a long-term employee benefit program comprising a lump-sum retirement benefit and
work jubilee benefits, for which no separate financial funds were earmarked. In accordance with IAS 19,
the employee benefits costs are assessed using the prejected unit credit method. Under this method, the
cost of providing pensions is charged to the Income statement so as to spread the regular cost over the
service period of employees. The benefit obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted by market yields on Slovak government bonds, which have terms Lo
maturity approximating the terms of the related liability, All actuarial gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of other comprehensive income, Past service costs are recognised when incurred as
expenses.
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s) Leases

The assessment of whether or not a contract contains or represents a lease depends on the substance of
the contract and requires an assessment of whether the performance of the contract depends on the use
of a specific, clearly identifiable asset or whether the contract grants the right to use the asset for a
period of time for equivalent. The lessee has the right to control the use of the asset and obtain
significant economic benefits from its use,

The Group does not apply IFRS 16 to leases of intangible assets, short-term lease contracts {less than
one year) and to leases where the underlying asset has a low value.

AL the date of the lease, as a lessee, the Group recognizes an asset with the right of use and recognizes
lease liability. An asset with the right of use is initially measured at cost and recognized in the
consolidated balance sheet line “Land, property, plant and equipment®. An asset with the right ef use is
subsequently measured using the cost model. The amortization period is equal te the estimated useful
life of the underlying asset or the lease term. Depreciated assets with the right of use are tested for
impairment whenever the events or changes in conditions occur that could mean the carrying amount
may not be recoverable, hut at least as of balance sheet date,

The lease liability is initially recognized at the present value of future lease payments and is presented in
the consolidated balance sheet line "Trade and other payables”, or “Other non-current liabilities”.
Subsequently, the lease liability is increased by the relevant interest calculated on the basis of the
incremental borrowing rate and reduced by the lease payments. Interest is reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the line *Finance costs”.

Leases for an indefinite period of time are limited to the earliest date on which the lease can be
terminated by the lessee or the lessor (taking into account previous customs and economic reasons for
those practices). The useful life of fixed-term leasing contracts corresponds to the rontractual pericd,

Total lease payments under exceptions (leases of intangible assets, short-term lease contracts and
leases where the underlying asset is of low value) are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term in the consolidated income statement and other comprehensive income.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due
to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Property lease classification — Group as a lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases, which are recognized on the balance sheet line
"Investment property”. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions
of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the
commercial property and the present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting to
substantially all of the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

t) Income Tax

Income tax is calculated from the profit/loss before tax recognised under International Financial
Reporting Standards adjusted pursuant to the relevant Decree of the Ministry of Finance of the Slovak
Republic after adjustments for individual items increasing and decreasing the tax base in line with Act
Mo. 585/2003 Coll. on Income Tax, as amended, using the applicable income tax rate.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, for all temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. Deferred Lax is calculated at the tax
rates that are expected to apply for the period when the asset is realized, or the liability is settled.
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Deferred tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except when it relates to items credited or
charged directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recorded in equity. The corporate
income tax rate effective for 2018 - 2020 was 21%.

The principal temporary differences arise from depreciations on property, plant, and equipment and
various provisions, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associated undertakings, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable future,

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised through profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. A special levy
is recognised as part of income taxes. Where current tax and deferred tax arise from the initial
recognition of a business combination, the tax effect is included in the recognition of the business
combination.

Special levy on business in regulated industries

Pursuant to the requirements of the IFRS, the Group’s income tax also includes a special levy as per Act
Mo, 235/2013 Coll. on Special Levy on Business in Regulated Industries and on Amendment to and
Supplementation of Certain Acts. It is recognised through profit or loss,

SPP is a regulated entity and has been obliged to pay special levies since September 2012, The lewy
period is a calendar month and the levy rate effective for 2020, the same as for 2019 is 0.00545 (the
levy rate effective for 2018 was 0.00726; the levy rate effective from 2021 will be 0.00363). The base
for the SPP's levy Is profit/loss before tax recognised under IFRS and adjusted to the profit/loss
recognised pursuant to the relevant Decree of the Ministry of Finance of the Slovak Republic and
adjusted pursuant to the Special Levy Act,

u) Foreign Currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the exchange rates of the European Central
Bank (ECB) valid on the transaction dates. Monetary assets, receivables and payables denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the ECB exchange rates valid on the reporting date. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are included in the income statement.

on consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiaries are translated at the ECB exchange
rates prevailing on the reporting date. Revenues and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, Foreign exchange differences, if any, are classified as equity as foreign exchange
translation reserve. Such reserve is recognised as Income or as an expense at the moment the financial
investment in a subsidiary is disposed of,

v) MNon-Current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount can be recovered through a
sale transaction rather than by continued use. This condition Is considered fulfilled only when the sale is
highly probable, and the non-current asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as
a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Neon-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and the fair value less costs to sell.
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4. ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, as described in Note 3, the Group has made
the following decisions concerning uncertainties and estimates that have a significant impact on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements. There is a significant risk of material adjustments in
future periods relating to such matters, including the following:

The Group is inveolved in various legal proceedings for which management has assessed the probability of
loss that may result in cash outflow, In making this assessment, the Group has relied on the advice of
external legal counsel, the latest available information on the status of the court proceedings, and an
internal evaluation of the likely outcome. The final amount of any potential losses in relation to the legal
proceedings is not known and may result in a material adjustment to the previous estimates. Details of
the legal cases are included In Note 29,

The financial statements include a provision for litigation and potential lawsuits which were estimated
using the available information and an assessment of the likely outcome of individual lawsuits. The
provision is not recognised unless a reasonable estimate can be made.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group calculated and recorded amounts related to the impairment of property, plant and equipment
on the basis of an assessment of their future use, planned liquidation or sale, based on information
received from real estate agencies. For some of these items, no final decision has vet been made and
thus the assumptions regarding the use, liquidation, or sale of the assets may change. Refer to Note 8
for details on the impairment of property, plant and equipment.

Unbilled revenues from gas and electricity sales

The Group records significant amounts as revenues from gas and electricity sales on the basis of
estimated gas and electricity consumption by small industrial customers and residential customers.
Actual consumption of such customers is determined based on an annual deduction performed after the
reporting date. The Group makes an estimate of these revenues by allocating actual measured gas and
electricity consumption te the individual categeories of customers on the basis of past consumption trends
and applying the valid natural gas and electricity prices. Actual consumption by customers in the
different categories may vary and so the amounts recorded as revenues may change, given the price
differences between categories of customers.

The Group uses a model that makes it possible to estimate these revenues with sufficient accuracy and
ensures that the risk of a significant difference between the quantity sold and the resulting estimated
revenue is not material,

Allowances for bad debts

The Group applies a simplified approach under IFRS 9 for trade and short-term receivables, i.e.
measures expected credit losses (ECL) using lifetime expected losses. Impairment losses on trade and
other receivables are recognized in income statement. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can
be objectively attributed to an event that occurs after the recognition of an impairment loss,

Situation in Ukraine

The Group is monitoring the development of the situation in Ukraine and its potential impact on the
Group's business. The Group's management believes that a significant negative impact on the Group's
financial performance is unlikely. The Group secks to diversify its natural gas resources by purchasing
and using reverse flows from Western Europe, and also by maintaining maximum natural gas reserves in
storage facilities which are able to cover short-term deficits in Russian natural gas supplies. In the event
of a long-term non-performance of liabilities by the Russian supplier of natural gas, there may be
potential adverse impacts, however, these cannot be reliably estimated.
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Provision for Onerous Contracts

As at 31 December 2020, the consolidated financial statements include significant amounts recognised as
provisions for anerous contracts in connection with non-cancellable contractual commitments to supply
natural gas to customers based on the sales contracts. These provisions are based on current market
information on the future development of natural gas prices in spot markets, which are volatile, For more
information, see Note 14,

A global pandemic caused by COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic affected the functioning of many companies and countries, including Slovakia,
which had a global impact on the global economy and disrupted many ecenomic chains. The wirus has
exposed the Group, its employees, customers and business partners to potential health and operational
risks, The Group's management has considered the effects of COVID-19 and the ongoing coronavirus
crisis on its business activities and concluded that they do not have a material impact on the Group’s
activities and do not pose a material threat to significant judgments and uncertainties in the 2020
financial statements. However, as the situation continues to change, future impacts cannot be predicted,
Management will continue to monitor potential impacts and take all possible steps to mitigate any
adverse effects on the Group and its employees.

Decisions in Application of Accounting Policies

In addition to key sources of uncertainty listed above, the Group used a judgment when applying
accounting policies and assessing the requirements of the standards as described in part 3, which have
a significant impact on the recognition of items in the consolidated financial statements. These
reguirements mainly include:

. Evaluation of requirements under IFRS 13 for the measurement of non-financial assets at fair
value (see Notes 3e, 3i and 3p); and
. Assessment of the IFRS 9 rules for the application of an exemption allowing one not to account for

certaln commodity buy and sell contracts as financial derivatives (see Note 3e).

5. STRUCTURE OF THE GROUP
Consolidated Subsidiaries

The following subsidiary is consolidated as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019:

Ownership share

Name Seat a5 Principal activity
: Movée sady 996/25, Stard Brno, Gas and electricity purchase
BEE Bl At Brna, Crech Republic i and sala

Mon-conseolidated subsidiaries

As at 21 December 2020 and as at 31 December 2019 below stated subsidiaries are not consolidated due
to the insignificancy:

Ownership share

Name Seat 84

Principal activity

Miynsks nivy d4/a, Bratislava, 5R 100.00 Compressed natural gas

SPP CNG s5.r.0. Miynské nivy 44/a, Bratislava, SR 100,00 purchase and sale

?ITS:SLGEIS:PF Miynske nivy 44/a, Bratislava, SR 100.00 Mon - profit ocrganization
Nezisknvr’l. f;rlqamzécia EF Miynske nivy 44/a, Bratislava, SR lﬂﬂ.ﬂl.'.l Non - profit crganization
ENRA L—'iEIW‘ICES i, Move sady 996/25, Stardé Brno, L0000 Mon - profit organization

602 00 Brno, CR Matural gas purchase and sale

&. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a) Financial Risk Factors

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates and gas purchase and selling prices. The Group’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the financial performance of the Group. In 2020 and 2019, the Group entered into derivative
transactions, for example, forward currency contracts and commaodity swaps in arder to manage certain
risks.
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The purpose of forward currency contracts was to eliminate the effects of changes in the CZK/EUR
exchange rates owing to future payments and revenues in foreign currency. The purpose of commodity
swaps is to limit the price risks of sales contracts made with customers and purchase contracts with
suppliers.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are foreign currency risk, commodity risk,
interest rate risk, risk of default related to receivables and liquidity risk. Risk management is performed
by the Risk Management Department in accordance with procedures approved by the Board of Directors
or management of the individual Group companies.

(1) Foreign Currency Risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from transactions in forelgn currencies, primarily in
Czech crowns (CZK).

Analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities denominated in foreign currency:

Financial assets Financial liabilities
As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
CZK 21 869 30 555 12 771 23 758

Sensitivity to foreign currency changes

The following tables show the Group's sensitivity to a 3% weakening of the Euro against the CZK. The
sensitivity analysis includes items denominated in a foreign currency and adjusts the currency translation
at the end of the reporting period by the 3% FX change. A negative value indicates a decrease in the
income statement if the euro weakens with regard to the relevant currency.

Impact of CZK
As at 31 December 2020 As at 31 December 2019

Effect on profit/loss before tax 11 B

The effects mainly relate to the risk relating to outstanding receivables and payables in CZK as at the
reporting date.

(2) Commeodity Price Risk

The Group is a party to framework agreements for the purchase of natural gas and other services and
material. In addition, the Group enters into contracts for the sale of natural gas and natural gas storage.
Contracts for natural gas storage are at fixed prices, which are escalated based on price indices every
YEar.

As at 31 December 2020 the Group used commodity swap contracts te manage the risk of commodity
price fluctuations, In the same way as at 31 December 2019, the Group used hedging derivative
contracts to hedge sales transactions.

The following table details the open swap commadity contracts at the reporting date,

Open swap commaodity

As at 31 December 2020

As at 31 December 2020

contraclts
Nominal value Fair value
In million EUR # HEM. ; Held
Hedging for trading Hedging for trading
Purchase/Sell gas
Less than 3 months 91 560 - 14 187
3 to 12 months 1B2 124 = 27 208 5
Chver 12 months 73312 237 G176 {24}

Open swap commodity
contracts

As at 31 December 2019

As at 31 December 2019

Nominal value Fair value
1 Held Held
T milion SR Hedging for trading Hedging for trading
Purchase/Sell gas
Less than 3 months 125 823 : (40 663) -
3 to 12 morths 250 060 - (68 955) .
Ower 12 months 76 321 238 {5 5094) (6}
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The Group uses hedging instruments to secure cash flow hedging and fair value of sales contracts,
Cash flow hedaing

The main risk affecting the price of natural gas is defined as commodity risk caused by price movements,
The aim of cash flow hedging is therefore to ensure a fixed cost of sourcing the sales contracts, which
are sold at fixed price. The risk of a change in the values of the input parameter affecting the price of
natural gas is thus fully eliminated based on an agreement with the counterparty to compensate their
development.

The Group recognizes the following commadity contracts:
At 321 December At 31 December

2020 2019
Commodity swaps
Mominal amount in MWh 9 785 304 10 203 440
Mominal amount in EUR ths. 109 713 174 757

The effect of hedging instruments in the balance sheet is as follows:

At 31 December 2020 At 31 December 2019
Line in the balance sheet

Cther non-current assets 2 542 &
Receivables and prepayments 19 142 1253
Other non=current liabilities = (1817
Trade and other payables (2 547) (49 Sa9)
Moeminal value recorded in contingent assets and liabilities 109 713 174 757

The effect of hedging instruments in the income statement and in the statement of other comprehensive
income is as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 21 December
2020 2019

Line in the income statement
Purchase of natural gas, electricity and material and energy
consumption (93 227) (5% 986)
Revenue from contracts with customers - <
Line in the staternent of other comprehensive income
Hedging derivatives (cash flow hedging) 19 123 {40 514)

Fair value hedging

To eliminate the commodity risk, the Group decided to manage the risks by offering a fixed price to the
customer through “back to back” hedging in the form of commeodity swaps of the sales formula, The
objective of the hedging instrument is to hedge the fair value of the yield contract. The risks of changes
in the values of the inpul parameters affecting the selling price of natural gas are thus fully eliminated
based on an agreement with the counterparty to compensate their developrent.

The effect of hedging instruments in the balance sheet is as follows:

At 31 December 2020 At 31 December 2019
Line in the statement of financial position

Other non-current assets 4 K36 99
Receivables and prepayments 28 814 .
Other non-current liabilities {9013 {3 879)
Trade and other payables (4 014) (&0 9223
Mominal value recorded in contingent assets and liabilities 237 283 277 447

The effect of hedged items in the balance sheet is as follows:

At 31 December 2020 At 21 December 2019
Linge in the statement of financial position

Dther non-current assets 501 3 879
Receivables and prepayments 4 014 60 922
Other non-current liabilities (4 536) (93]
Trade and other payables (2B 814) -
These notes farm an >|.';te_g|'al part {;.f_.?ht'. l::!:m."::l'_ll;"d:_itECl ﬁl'lﬂl‘l_'!.'i-f-l.f. !;L'.Ht'F“I'I'IF!HIH. 25
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(3) Interest Rate Risk

The Group was exposed to minimum interest rate risks associated with interest rate volatility, as it drew
a long-term loan with a fixed interest rate and a loan with a floating interest rate provided by an
associated company.

For the Group, the volatility of interest rates for short-term loans does not represent a significant risk as
such loans are drawn only occasionally, and the level of interbank EURIBOR interest rates have recently
been at their historical minimums (1M EURIBOR is used as a reference rate for short-term loans drawn
by the Group and was -0.554% p.a. as at 31 December 2020, i.e. an decrease of 0.116% p.a. compared
to 31 December 2019, when 1M EURIBOR was -0.438% p.a.).

Given the minimum level of short-term Interest rates, sensitivity to a potential decrease of interest rates
by more than 0.1 - 0.2% cannot be tested. On the contrary, if interest rates increase, interest expenses
will increase only slightly, since these loans are drawn by the Group only several times a year.

As at 31 December 2020 a short - term loan from the associated company SPP Infrastructure, a.s. was
drawn in amount EUR 1 373 thousand. As at 31 December 2019, no short-term loan was drawn by the
Group. During the years 2020 and 2013, short-term loans were drawn down in a minimum extent, to
cover a lack of liquidity for a short period of ime.

{4) Credit Risk Related to Receivables

The Group sells its products and services to various customers that, neither individually nor jaintly in
terms of volume and solvency, represent significant risk that the receivable will not be settled pursuant
to the wvalid risk management policy. The Group has policies in place that ensure that preducts and
services are sold to customers with an appropriate credit history and that an acceptable limit to credit
expasure is not exceeded.

The maximum exposure Lo credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset,
including derivative financial instruments, in the balance sheet, net of provisions.

(5)  Liguidity Risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash with an appropriate due date and
marketable securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit lines,
and the ability to close open market positions, Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business,
Treasury management aims to maintain flexibility by keeping committed credit lines available and
synchrenising the maturity of financial assets with financial needs. To settle outstanding liabilities, the
Group has funds and undrawn credit lines at its disposal.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company drew only a current loan from an associate SPP Infrastructure,
a.5. ameounting to EUR 1 373 thousand. As at 31 December 2019 the Company drew only a non-current
loan amounting to EUR 84 909 thousand, which remaining value as at 31 December 20119 was recognized
as short-term credit resources of EUR 84 909 thousand, as its maturity was on 2 July 2020,

Loans with maturity of less than 2 years are drawn in EUR with a variable interest rate linked to
1M EURIBOR. {in some cases O/N for overdraft facilities). For long-term loans, the interest rate is set as
fixed,

The bulk of shert-term credit lines include an automatic loan extension clause, provided that none of the
parties concerned cancels the loan within the specified period. Long- or medium-term loans have a fixed
maturity date.

All loans are provided without any collateral, using commaon market provisions (pari-passu, ban to pledge
assets, substantial negative impact). Regarding the balance of the credit facilities drawn as at
31 December 2020 in the amount of EUR 1 373 thousand (whereas the funds and tradable securities
amounted to EUR 251 236 thousand), the net debt totals EUR 0. If necessary, maturing credit facilities
may be paid off from undrawn credit facilities, as well as from available funds and tradable securities (at
31 December 2020 EUR 364 000 thousand from banks),

These notes form an-integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 26
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The table below summarises the maturity of financial liabilities at 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2019 based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Less than Ita 12

Ondemand 5 o iRt 1to 5years =5 years Total

31 December 2020
Trade payables ’ 155 de6 - = - 155 866
Other liabilities - X797 32271 7533 415 63 016
Loans bearing floating interest - - - - . -
Loans bearing fixed interest

(Mote 15) ~ - 1373 “ - 1373
31 December 2019
Trade payables - 170 447 - . 3 170 447
Other liabilities E 68 549 82 364 576 737 160 226
Loans bearing floating interest - - - = by 2
Loans bearing fixed interest

(MNote 15) - 84 909 . - B4 9049
b) Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group companies are able to conlinue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders through optimising the debt and equity ratio, as
well as through ensuring a high credit rating and sound capital ratios.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, i.e. loans disclosed in Mote 1%, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to the owner of the parent company, which comprise the registered
capital, legal and other reserves, and retained earnings as disclosed in Notes 19 a 20.

The gearing ratio was as follows:

At 31 December

At 31 December

2020 2019
Debt (i) 1373 84 909
Cash and cash equivalents 251 236 175912
Meat debt 2 <
Equity (i) ) 1 794 558 1 656 266

Met debt to equity ratio

(i} Debt s dafined as long- and short-term Lorrowings.
(i} Page B

—_—

0%

c) Categories of Financial Instruments
At 31 December At 31 December
2020 2019
Financial assets 550 976 555 096
Financial derivatives recognised as hedging 55 948 66 153
Financial derivatives held for trading 8 833 40 733
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents) 482 195 448 210
Financial liabilities 218128 413 355
Financial derivatives recognised as hedging 40 811 116 667
Financial dervatives held for trading 6 696 18 544
Financial liabilities carried at amortised costs 170 621 278 144

d) Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of estimated fulure cash flows
using forward interest rates as at the reporting date and agreed forward rates taking into account the
credit risks of various parties.

The fair value of commodity swaps is determined using forward commaodity prices and forward exchange
rates as at the reporting date and agreed forward rates taking into account credit risk of various parties.

These notes form an integral part of the eonsalidated financial statements, 27
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The fair value of ordinary shares not in a book-entry form has been estimated using a valuation
technique based on assumptions that they are not supported by observable market prices. The valuation
requires management to make estimates of the expected future cash flows from shares that are
discounted at current rates,

The estimated fair values of other instruments, mainly current financial assets and liahilities approximate
their carrying amounts.,

When determining the fair value of non-traded derivatives and other financial instruments, the Group
uses a number of methods and market assumptions that are based on the market conditions prevailing
as at the reporting date. Other methods, mainly the estimated discounted value of future cash flows, are
used to determine the fair value of other financial instruments.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that, upon initial revaluation, are
subsequently recognised at fair value, in accordance with the fair value hierarchy.

Level 1 of the fair value measurement represents these fair values that are derived from the prices of
similar assets or liabilities guoted on active markets.

Level 2 of the fair value measurement represents those fair values that are derived from input data other
than the guoted prices included in Level 1, which are observable on the market for assets or liabilities
directly (e.g. prices) or indirectly (e.g. derived from prices).

Level 3 of the fair value measurement represents those fair values that are derived from valuation
models, Including subjective input data for assets or liakilities not based on market data.

Year 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Levael 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value 6104 62 677 s 68 781
Financial derivatives held for trading B 104 2729 - 8833
Fimnancial derivatives recognised as hedging # 59 948 - 29 943
Financial liabilities at fair value o 884 46 622 = 47 506
Fimnancial derivatives held for trading a4 5811 = 6 695
Financial derivatives recognised as hedging - 40 811 - 40 B11
Year 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value 2 890 103 996 - 106 886
Financial derivatives held for trading 2 B9D 37 843 - 40 733
Financial derivatives recognised as hedging - 66 153 - 66 153
Financial liabilities at fair value 1261 133 950 - 135 211
Financial derivatives held for trading 1261 17 283 - 18 544
Financial derivatives recognised as hedging - 116 667 - 116 667

Embedded Derivative Instruments

The Group signed a long-term contract for purchases of natural gas denominated in USD. Following an
agreement with the Russian partner, the contract was modified by an amendment and the price was
converted to EUR with a direct link to the development of the relevant spot market. Both the economic
characteristics and risks of embedded forward derivative instruments (USD Lo EUR), and natural gas
prices are generally believed to be closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the
underlying purchase agreements. Hence, in accordance with IFRS 9, the Group does not recognise
embedded derivatives separately from the host contract.

The Group has assessed all other significant contracts and agreements for embedded derivatives that
should be recorded. The Group concluded that there are no embedded derivatives in these contracts and
agreements that are required to be measured and recognised separately as at 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2019 under the requirements of IFRS 9,

These notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 28
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7. INVESTMENTS RECOGNISED USING THE EQUITY METHOD
Details of the Group’s associated undertakings as at 31 December 2020 can be summarised as follows:

Value under equity

Name Seat Ou:nersth;g Principal activity method at
RN 31 December 2020
SEP Infrastructure; a. 5. [IYNske nivy 44/a, 51.00  Holding company 1 318 880

Bratislava, Slovakia
SPP has recognised this ownership interest in SPP Infrastructure, a. s. using the equity method.

An overview of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses of SPP Infrastructure, a.s. is as follows:

At 31 December

At 321 December

2020 2019
Property, plant and equipmeant 4 722 000 4 816 000
Loans provided 12 000 41 000
Other non-current assets 45 000D L4 000
Current assets SGE D00 734 000
Total assets 5 347 000 5 645 000
Mon-current interest-hearing borrowings 1 370 000 1 434 000
Provisicns for liabilities and other long-term liabilities 1 080 000 1101 000
Current liabilities 818000 1 147 GDG
Total liabilities 3 268 000 3 682 000
Net assets 2 079 000 1 963 000
At 31 December At 31 December
2020 2019
Revenues 1424 00D 1471 000
Profit before income taxes 970 000 948 000
Incame tax including deferred tax [243 000 (252 000)
Profit after tax 727 000 696 000
Dther comprehensive profits and losses [_55__pp0] 32 000
Comprehensive net incomae 672 000 728 000

A reconciliation of the financial information stated above with the carrying amount of the share in SPP

Infrastructure, a. s. recognised in these consolidated financial statements is as follows:

At 31 December

At 31 December

2020 2019
Met assets of SPP Infrastructure, a. s. 2 079 000 1 963 000
Dwnership interest {51%) 1 060 290 1001 130
Goodwill 258 590 258 500
Carrying amount of the share in SPP Infrastructure, a. s. 1318 880 1259 720

Reconciliation of the carrying amount of shares in SPP Infrastructure, a.s. reported using the equity

method in these consolidated financial statements s as follows:

31. december

F1. december

2020 2019
Cpening balance 1259 720 1 244 420
Dividend payment (2068 417 (340 386)
Share on profit/loss 355 117 339 876
Share on the comprehensive profitfloss {27 540) 15 &1d
Closing balance 1 318 BBO 1 259 720

Associate SPP Infrastructure, a.5. did not have any contingent liahilities or commitments in which the

Group should take part as at 31 December 2020 and 31

These notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,
This is an English language translation of the original Slovak language document.
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Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2020
(in thousand EUR)

Type and amount of insurance of non-current intangible and tangible assets

Insured assets

Buildings, halls, structures,
machinery, equipment, fittings &
fixtures, low-value TFA, ather
TFA, works of art, inventories
Movables, assets, inventories

Type of insurance

Insurance of assets

Motar third-party liahility

Maotor vehicles

9, INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Opening net book value
Depreciation charges
Change of provisions

insurance, motor hull
insurance

Cost of insured
assets
2020 2019

214 473

130

At 31 December

Additions and disposals and reclassifications to non-current tangible

assels
Clesing net book value

213 B46

Name and seat of the
insurance company

Colonnade Insurance 5.4,

126

pobodka poisfovne z ingho
flenského Statu

Ceskd podnikatelska
pojistovna

At 31 December

2020 2019
24 262 25 064
{1278) {1212)

122 {168)
833 242
23939 24 262

SPP leases non-gas assets primarily to SPP — distriblcia, a.s. In accordance with IAS 40, SPP opted for
recognition at historical cost, If the revaluation model was used, the restated value of the assets would
be EUR 230 512 thousand based on the SPP's estimate (At 31 December 2019: EUR 30 541 thousand).

10. NON-CURRENT INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Year ended 31 December 2019
Cpening net book value
Additions

Placed into service
Reclassifications

Disposals

Amortisation

Change of provisions

Closing net book value

At 31 December 2019

Acquisition cost

Provisions and accumulated depreciation
Met book value

Year ended 31 December 2020
Opening net book value
Additions

Placed into service
Reclassifications

DMsposals

Amaortisation

Change of provisions

Closing net book value

At 31 December 20020

Acquisition cost

Provizions and accumulated depreciation
Met book value

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial stalements.
This iz an English language translation of the original Slovak language document.

Other e Assetsin
Software intangible course of Total
i s construction
10 628 735 B34 12 197
17 i 1161 1 180
1039 204 {1243} =
{1983) (1509 (2173}
Bk F .. _393
9 794 751 752 11 297
75131 3 345 819 79 295
(65 337) (2 594} (67} (67 398)
9 704 751 752 11 297
G o4 751 752 11 297
35 - 2315 2350
1011 4 {1015) =
{1 665) {144 [1 BO9)
161 = = i61
0 336 611 2052 11 999
76171 3 349 2119 81 639
(66 835) (2 738) (67) (69 640)
9 336 611 2052 __11 999
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(in thousand EUR})

11. INVENTORIES

At 31 December

At 31 December

2020 2019
Matural gas 77 249 158 156
Matural gas held for trading 19 557 45 653
Raw materials B 7
Provisions (2 637) {2 170)
Total 94 175 201 646

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Group recorded a provision for natural gas related
to the adjustment of the cost of natural gas to its net realisable value.

12, RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

At 31 December At 31 December

2020 2019

Trade receivables from the sale of natural gas and electricity 139 759 123 587
Contractual assets from sales to customers 25 546 15 349
Prepayments for distribution of natural gas 15 983 15 D63
Receivables from financial derivatives 58215 101 274
Prepayments and other receivables _49671 118 299
Total 290 174 373 572

Trade receivables from the sale of natural gas and electricity are shown net and represent receivables
from hilled gas and electricity supplies.

Contractual assets from sales to customers represent estimated amounts of unbilled commodity supplies
to customers whose actual consumption will be determined based on a meter reading after the end of the
calendar year. Such amounts are billed in the following 12 months based on the actual measured
consumption and valid tariffs,

Receivables and prepayments are shown net of provisions for bad and doubtful receivables in the amount
of EUR 164 333 thousand (31 December 2019: EUR 184 080 thousand),

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded receivables within maturity in the amount of
ELR 309 932 thousand and receivables overdue in the amount of EUR 144 575 thousand, excluding
provisions. As at 31 December 2019, the Group recorded receivables within maturity and overdue in the
amount of EUR 383 046 thousand and EUR 174 606 thousand, respectively, excluding provisions. As at
31 December 2019, SPP recorded receivables from customers in the large consumer and commercial
market segments in the amount of EUR 37 015 thousand, for which SPP concluded that a specific
provision would be required. The reasen for specific provision were management’s doubts aboul the
customers’ ability to repay amounts to SPP. Due to limited availability of information on the customers’
ability to pay its liabilities and the related high level of uncertainty, as at 31 December 2019 SPP
recorded a provision for all overdue receivables from the customers and also partially for receivables
within maturity in the amount of EUR 31 195 thousand. As at 31 December 2020 the SPP has assessed
that it is not necessary to create a specific allowance heyond the timing adjustments.

Maturities of trade receivables used as a benchmark for the Group's internal policy of provisioning:

2020 2019
Within maturity 309 932 383 046
Less than 3 months 7 706 11 440
3 to 12 months 5718 28 921
More than 12 months 131 151 134 245
Total 454 507 557 652

Mavements in provisions for doubtful receivables:

At 31 December

At 31 December

2020 2019

Balance as at 1 January 184 OB 1549 732
Lise of provision (15 353) {5 748)
Reversal of pravision (24 854) (832)
Creation of provision 20 460 30 928
Reclassification between current and non-current portions =

Closing balance 164 333 184 D80
These notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements, 32
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13. RETIREMENT AND OTHER LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The long-term employee benefits program at SPP was originally launched in 1995, This is a defined
benefit program, under which employees are entitled to a lump-sum payment upon old age or disability
retirement and, subject to vesting conditions, work jubllee payments, In 2017 SPP signed collective
agreement that was valid until the end of 2020. On 10 December 2020, a new collective agreement for
2021 and 2022 was signed, under which employees are entitled to retirement payments based on the
number of years worked at SPP upon retirement after meeting the relevant conditions. Retirement
benefits range from three to five average monthly salaries of employees with a guaranteed minimum
(EUR 700} and threshold maximum amount (EUR 1 500) of the relevant multiples. The amount of long-
term employee benefits - work anniversaries is determined based on the number of years of continuous
waork, There are 6 periods, where the first-time remuneration begins to be paid when 10 years are
reached {120 EUR) and the last when 40 years are reached (620 EUR). As at 31 December 2019 the
obligation relating to retirement and other long-term employee benefits was calculated on the basis of
the valid collective agreement effective from 1 January 2018 and as at 31 December 2020 based on the
valid collective agreement effective from January 2021,

fs at 31 December 2020, 726 employees of SPP (31 December 2019: 679%9) were covered by this
program. As of that date, it was an unfunded program, with no separately allocated assets to cover the
program’s liabilities.

Movements in the net liability recognised in the balance sheet for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
as follows:

Leirig-termn Post- Total benefits at Total benefits at
benefits employment 31 December 31 December
benefits 2020 2019
Met liability at 1 January 246 BRI 1 135 1054
Expenses of the past and current service,
net 19 &0 79 79
Interest expense 2 G i 15
Employee benefits paid (19} {21} {40} (493
Actuarial {gains)flosses;
Actuarial (gains)/losses from a change in
demographic assumptions - = - -
Actuarial {gains)/losses from a change in
financial assumptions 11 (52) (41} 82
Actuarial {gains)/losses arising from
experience 21 5 26 _46)
Met liabilities 280 887 1167 1135
Current liabilities
(included in other current ”;";’; ;‘:j:;’::‘ Total
liahilities)
At 31 December 2020 o7 1070 1 167
At 31 December 2019 65 1070 1135

A breakdown of significant items related to the liability for employee benefits recognised in the income
statement for the reporting period is stated below:

Long-term Post- Total at 31 Total at 31
benefits empfayq}enr December December
benefits 2020 2019
Fxpenses of the past and current service,
net 19 Gl 73 79
Interest expense 2 & 8 15
Other (decrease of liability) 32 B 32 =
Total expenses for employee benefits 53 66 119 _ 94
These notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 33
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{in thousand EUR}

A breakdown of items related to the liability for employee benefits recognised in the statement of other

comprehensive income:

Long-term Post- Total at 31 Total at 31
banefits employment December December
benefits 2020 2019
Actuarial {gains)/losses from a change in
demographic assumpticns = £ f: #
Actuarial {gains)/losses from a chanae in
financial assumptions - (52) (52) 8z
Actuarial (gains)flosses arising from
experience - s 5 _(46)
Total actuarial (gains)/losses - (47} (47) 36

Sensitivity analysis - in the event of an increase/decrease in the discount rate andfor inflation, the

amount of the liability for employee benefits would change as follows:

Post- Total at 31
LE:?:;;::' employment December
benefits 2020
Increase in the discount rate by 0.25% 274 863 1137
Increase in inflation by 0.25% 286 04 1190
Decrease in the discount rate by 0.25% 284 apg 1192
Decrease in inflation by 0,25% (at 0%) 2BO 871 1151

Key assumptions used in the actuarial valuation:
At 31 December 2020

Market vield on gevernment bonds 0.201 9%

Al 31 December 2019

Annual future real rate of salary increases

0.50 %

0.718 %
2.00 %

Annual employes turnover Ranging fram 1.9% to 20%
depending on the age category,
average of 6.01%

In 2021, 62 years plus 10
months for men and women.
The average estimated age for
drawing an old age pensien
benefit is 63,5.

Retirement ages {male and female)

14. PROVISIONS

Movements in the provisions for liabilities are summarised as follows:

Provisfon

Ranging from 1,9% to 209
depending on the age category,
average of 5.01%

In 2020, 62 yvears plus 8
menths for men and women,

The average estimated age
for drawing an old age
pension benefit is 63.4.

i Other Total at Total at
anerous provisions 31 Dzegsanber i D;gf: bar
contracts
Balance at 1 January 8383 35 208 44 091 56 495
Effect of discounting {46} - {46} (207}
Additions 2704 Sh6 3 270 b 753
Use (5 393) - (6 393) {16 330
Reversal [1927) ) - (1 927) [2 B20)
Closing balance 3 221 35 774 38 995 44 D'Elf_l__
The provisions are included in liabilities as follows:
Current provisions Nen-current Total
provisions provisions
AL 31 December 2020 3113 35 882 38 9495
At 31 December 2019 & /04 37 387 44 091
These notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial -.;tat:é.ﬁ-nents. 34
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a) Provision for Onerous Contracts

The Group identified and recorded a provision for onerous contracts in connection with non-cancellable
contractual commitments to supply natural gas to customers and business partners under sales contracts
in 2021 and beyond. These provisions are based on an assumption that future costs to purchase natural
gas, which are mainly influenced by the long-term purchase contract with Gazprom Export LLC, to
provide natural gas to these customers, will exceed economic benefits obtained at the sale. The
calculation of the provision is subject to various assumptions of current market information relating to
the future development of natural gas prices in spot markets, which are volatile. The actual losses
generated with regard to these contracts may vary moderately. However, due to the realization of
hedging derivatives, we do not expect significant differences. The actual amount of losses may also be
affected by the current situation caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.

b Other Provisions
Other provisions amounting to EUR 35 774 thousand (31 December 2019 EUR 35 208 thousand)

comprise a provision for various pending lawsuits and other potential lawsuits, Refer also to Note 29,

15. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019
Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total
Loans - 1373 1373 - B4 909 B4 909
Bonds i = e 4 - A of
Total lpans - 1373 1373 - 84 909 84 909
Loans by currency
ELIR
- with fixed interest
rate = - = + 84 909 84 909
- with variable interest
rate = - 1373 1373 T = -
Total loans B - 1373 1373 - 84 909 B84 909
Loans are due as
follows:
Less than 1 year ¥ 1373 1373 K 84 909 B 09
1 to 2 years - - - . -
2o 5 years * = - - - T
Maore than & years it = e - = £
Total loans - 1373 1373 - 84 009 84 009

In 2020 and 2019, the Group drew loans denominated in EUR with variable and fixed interest rates, As at
31 December 2020, the loan with variable interest rate was drawn from associate company SPP
Infrastructure, a.s., amounting to EUR 1 373 thousand, As at 31 December 2019, the Group drew a long-
term bank loan of EUR 84 909 thousand with a fixed interest rate of 4,125 % p. a., which was repaid in
July 2020.

The long-term loan bore interest at a fixed interest rate; short-term loans can be drawn on a revolving
basis with one-month interest period or as an overdraft loan facility. The loans were not secured by any
assets.

Interest rates on loans and bonds:

Loans 2020 2019

EUR

— with a fixed rate 4,125 4.125

— with a variable rate 1M EURIBOR plus margin 1M EURIBOR plus margin

The carrylng amount and lface value of loans:

Carrying amount Face value
31 December 321 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
Loans 1373 84 9069 1373 g5 000
Bonds : - ) x t
Total 1373 ____Basgo9 1373 N 85 000
These |‘|{:-L'-|_=5. form an integrai- part of the i.lJrI-'.vEI|II'Ja1.<'_"L'.| financ_i:-ll :-s.l:ah-!rm:nrﬁ. . s
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Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2020
(in thousand EUR)

The Group has the following outstanding credit facilities:

Variable rate:

- due within 1 year

- due after more than 1 year
Fixed rate;

- due within 1 year

- due after more than 1 vear

At 31 December

At 31 December

2020 2019
364 000 104 000
364 000 304 000

Based on certain loan agreements, SPP is required to comply with the agreed financial covenants, i.e. on
each relevant day of each calendar year over the term of the loan agreement, the net debt on the
respective relevant day of the relevant calendar year against the EBITDA for the previous 12 months
prior to that relevant day may not be higher than 2. As at 31 December 2020, SPP complied with this

covenant,

16. DEFERRED INCOME

As at 31 December 2020 deferred income mainly comprises an inventory surplus of non - depreciable
assets in the amount of EUR 22 thousand (as at 31 December 2019: EUR 23 thousand).

17. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES AND LEASE LIABILITIES

Mon-current liabilities from financial derivatives
Mon-current lease liabilities
Total

The Group recognized lease liabilities as follows:

Short-term lease liabilities (Mote 18)
Mon-current lease liabilities
Lease liabilities total

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities:

Within 1 year

1to 5 years

More than 5 years
Total

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Payables from purchases and supplics of natural gas and electricity
Contractual payables from sales to customers
Other trade payables and other payables
From which Shart-term lease liabilitles
Other liabilities
Employee liabilities
Social security and other taxes
Payables from financial derivatives
Total

At 31 At 31
December 2020 December 2019
5 819 7 156
2 129 2157
7 948 9313
At 31 At 31
December 2020 December 2019
580 590
) 2129 2157
2 709 2747
At 31 At 31
December 2020 December 2019
580 5890
1714 1420
415 o 737
2 709 2 747

At 31 December
2020

99 746
27 802
28 319
SB0

1 048
4970

15 753
41 6B7
219 325

At 31 December
2019

94 965
37 757
33 686
580

3 849

4 6E7
13317
128 055

320 351

The payables arising from purchases and sales of natural gas and electricity represent current liabilities
resulting from the purchase of natural gas and electricity, and overpayments for natural gas and

electricity supplies to customers,

These notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,
T'his is an English language translation of the original Slovak language document,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

(in thousand EUR)

Contractual payables from sales to customers represent advance payments for commodity supplies to
customers which are calculated by the Group using the model for unbilled deliveries and are accounted
for with the double entry as a decrease in revenue from the sale of the commodity in the current year,
The actual customer consumption will be determined by deductions after the end of the calendar year.
These amounts will be recognized based on the actual consumption measured that will be determined by
meter readings conducted in the 12 months follewing the end of the calendar year.

Maturity of contractual payables:

Current liabilities MNon-current
liabilities L
At 31 December 2020 27 802 - 27 802
At 31 December 2019 37 797 = 37 M7

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded payables within maturity in the amount of EUR 219 288
thousand (31 December 2019; EUR 320 326 thousand) and overdue payables in the amount of EUR 37
thousand (31 December 2019: EUR 25 thousand).

The Group has no significant liability secured by a pledge or any other form of collateral.

Sacial fund payables:

Amount
Dpening balance as at 1 January 2020 53
Total additions: 243
from expenses 243
fram profit -
Total drawing: {218)
manetary rewards and gifts (21}
work jubilee henefits (14}
catering alfowance {75}
benefit cafeteria ) (106}
Clasing balance as at 31 December 2020 8O

19. REGISTERED CAPITAL

The company's registered capital as at 31 December 2020 and 31 Decemnber 2019 comprises 26 666 536
fully-paid shares (with a face value of EUR 33.19), which are owned by the Slovak Republic represented
by the Ministry of Economy of the Slovak Republic.

The registered capital was recorded in the Commercial Register in the full ameunt.

Pursuant to the company's Articles of Association, if all shares (except for treasury shares acquired by
the company pursuant to Article 161a or Article 161b of the Commercial Code} are held by one
shareholder, in cases where the law requires a two-third (2/3) majority, 2 two-third {2/3) majority af
votes of the shareholders present at a general meeting is required to adopt decisions, If the company
has a sole shareholder, such a shareholder acts in the capacity of the general meeting in the form of
written decisions that must be signed by the shareholder, In cases stipulated by law, such decisions must
be in the form of a notarial deed.

20. LEGAL AND OTHER FUNDS AND RETAINED EARNINGS

Since 1 January 2006, SPP has been required to prepare financial statements in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the EU (both separate and consolidated} only. Distributable profit represents retained
earnings only as stated in the separate financial statements.

The legal reserve fund

The legal reserve fund in the amount of EUR 1197 683 thousand (31 December 2019:
EUR 1 197 683 thousand) is recorded in accordance with Slovak law and is not distributable to the
shareholders. The reserve is created from retained earnings to cover possible future losses or increases
in the registered capital. Transfers of at least 10% of the current year's profit (as presented in the
individual financial statements) are required to be made until the reserve is equal to at least 20% of the
registered capital.

I'hese notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements, 37
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

{in thousand EUR)

Hedging reserve

Hedging reserve represents gains and losses arising from cash flow hedging.

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Opening balance (47 964} (37 617)
Gainfloss from cash flow hedging 19 136 {4 104)
Commodity swap contracts 19 135 (50 514)
Commodity swap contracts * b 631 GE BRSO
Commeodity forward contracts 1020 (510
Interest rate swap contracts * {7 650 {21 9230}
Ineame tax applicable to gains/losses recognised through equity * - (9 690)
Transfers to profit and loss 13 284 (2 163)
Commodity swap contracts 50 514 24 B&7
Commeadity swap contracts * (39 270) {27 030)
Interest swap contracts * 2 040 -
Income tax applicable to gains/losses recognised through profit/loss* 7 650 5610

Closing balance (7 B94) (47 964)

* Share from associated company

A hedging reserve represents a cumulative accrued portion of gains and losses arising from a change in
the fair value of hedging instruments concluded for cash flow hedging purposes, A cumulative gain or
loss arising from a change in the fair value of hedging derivatives recognised and accumulated in the
hedging reserve is reclassified to profit or loss provided that the hedged transaction has an effect on the
income statement.

Gains/(losses) arising from a change in the fair value of the hedging instruments transferred during the
current period from equity to profit or loss are disclosed in the following lines of the consolidated income
statement:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Sale of natural gas and electricity 50 514 24 B&7
Share in profit of associated companies and joint ventures {20 5B0) (21 4200
Income tax charged to expenses . - y-
Total 20 934 o ) 3 447

Retained Earnings and Profit Distribution
Other funds and reserves in equily are not distributable to SPP's shareholders.

On 30 September 2019 the SPP's sole shareholder decided to transfer funds from the SPP to Nadécia SPP
in amount of EUR 2 million to support spert and sport activities in Slovak Republic through the civil
association "Slovensky olympijsky a Sportovy wybor”.

On 30 October 2019, the SPP's sole shareholder decided to transfer funds from the SPP to EkoFond, n.f.
(non-profit fund) of EUR 500 thousand to support projects of the non-investrment fund, to Nadacia SPP
(SPP Foundation) of EUR 3 millien to support community activities in line with the Foundation Deed, to
Neziskova organizacia EF (non-profit organization) of EUR 500 thousand to support projects in line with
the non-profit organization's statutes and for the benefit of third parties including the above entities in
the maximum amount of EUR 1 million for community activities.

5PP treated these transfers as transactions with the owners exercising their ownership powers and the
transfers of funds were recognised as other distributions of profit,

These notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 38
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2020
(in thousand EUR)

21. REVENUES FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Revenues from the sale of natural gas

Revenues from the sale of electricity

Other revenues

Total revenues from contracts with customers

22. STAFF COSTS

Wages, salaries and bonuses

Social security costs

Other social security costs and severance pay
Total staff costs

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
9593 153 1 016 585
238 078 162 297
7 748 10 729
1 238 979 1189 611
Year ended Year ended

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

20939 20 391
7 241 7 154
1315 1908

29 495 29 453

The Group contributes to 35.2% of the relevant assessment base according to the law, however, no
more than from approximalely EUR 7 091 (except for accident and health insurance). The employees
contribute to these funds an additional 13.4% of their assessment bases, but only up to the above limit.

A company based in the Czech Republic makes contributions amounting to 33.8% (social security
insurance contributions and a contribution to state employment policy of 24.8% plus public health
insurance of 9%). The maximum annual assessment base for social security insurance and the
contribution to the state employment policy amounts to CZK 1 701 thousand. The employees make
contributions totalling 11% (social security insurance contributions and contribution to the state
employment policy of 6.5% plus public health insurance contributions of 4.5%]),

23. INVESTMENT INCOME

Interest income
Other gains/{losses) on investments, net
Total investment income

24. FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense

Foreign exchange gains/(losses) from financing activities
Other

Total finance costs

25. COSTS OF AUDITOR'S SERVICES

Audit of financial statements

Other assurance services

Tax advisory services

Other related services provided by the auditor
Total

[hese notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

This is an English language translation of the ariginal Slovak language document,

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
155 512
155 512
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
(1 BROY {3 568)
(70) 62
= (247 (894}
(2 197) (4 400)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
98 91
o D& 91
39



Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

(in thousand EUR)

26. TAXATION
26.1. Income Tax

Income tax comprises the following:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Current income tax 32 106
Special levy on business in regulated industries 13990 12 D56
Share in income tax of associated undertakings and joint ventures -

Deferred income tax (MNote 26.2)

= current year 17 102
- effect of the change in the tax rate on deferred tax = -
Total ) 14 039 12 264

The reconciliation between the reported income tax and the theoretical amount calculated using the
standard tax rates Is as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Profit/{loss} before taxation 360 189 230 447
Income tax at 21% 75 640 48 402

Effect of income exempt from taxation and adjustments from
permanant differences between net book and net tax values of

assets and labilities (70 SBE) (70 317}
Reversal of a deferred tax and the effect of temporary differences incl.

the tax loss for which no deferred tax asset was recognised {1621) 24 535
Effect of the change in the tax rate - -
Special levy incl. the effect of a special levy as a tax-deductible item 10 976 9 538
Other adjustments 22 o 106
Income tax for the year 14 039 . 12 264

The actually recognised tax rate differs from the tax rate of 21% stipulated by law in 2020 mainly due to
the adjustments of the tax base in respect of the current income tax for items increasing and decreasing
the tax base pursuant to valid tax legislation. Such adjustments primarily include tax non-deductible
provisions for liabilities and provisions for assets, a difference between tax and accounting deprecation
charges of non-current assets, the revaluation reserve for non-cash contributions, non-tax loss from non-
hedging derivative transactions, etc.

In addition, as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities were not recognised as there are uncertainties as to sufficient future taxable income to utllise
such deferred tax assets,

Pursuant to IFRS requirements, the income tax also includes a special levy on business in regulated
industries pursuant to a special regulation (see Note 3, part t).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recognised on the balance sheet an estimated liability from the
special levy on business in regulated industries in the amount of EUR 770 thousand (31 December 2019:
receivable of EUR 5 391 thousand).

26.2. Deferred Income Tax

The Group applied the income tax rate of 21% valid in Slovakia as of 1 January 2017 to the deferred
income tax calculation,

As S5PP expects no taxable profits against which temporary differences could be utilised in the near
future, deferred tax assets were not recognised as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019,

Deductible temporary differences and tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised as at
31 December 2020 amount Lo EUR 208 194 thousand (31 December 2019:; EUR 359 021 thousand).

These notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 40
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

{in thousand EUR)

The amount and year of possible deduction of unutilised tax losses, for which no deferred tax asset is

recognised;
Maturity of tax loss 2021 2022 2023
Total tax losses 66 712 51 5G7 29932
27. TAX EFFECTS IN THE STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Disclosure of tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive income:
At 31 December 2020 Before tax Tax After tax
Change in FX translation reserve - impact from the consolidation of the
subsidiary and the share from the associated company 2025 = 2025
Hedging derivatives (Cash flow hedging) 69 649 60 G459
Hedging derivatives (Cash flow hedging} - the share from the
associated company (37 229) 7 650 (29 579)
Other 47 5 a7
Other comprehensive income for the period = 34 492 7 650 42 142
At 31 December 2019 Before tax Tax After tax
Change in FX translation reserve - impact from the consolidation of the
subsidiary and the share from the associated company 523 - 523
Hedging dervatives (Cash flow hedging) {25 647) - (25 647)
Hedging derivatives (Cash flow hedging) - the share from the
associated company 19 380 {4 0an) 15 300
Other L 35
Other comprehensive income for the period {5 779) {4 080) (9 859)
28. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Yoar ended Year ended
21 December 31 December
2020 2019
Profit before tax 360 189 230 487
Adjustments for:
Depreclation and amortisation 7 538 B 026
Provisions and other non-cash items (9 744) 12 D0&
Loss/{profit) from sale of non-current assets (13) {10)
Derivatives 20 050 {19 316)
Interest loss/(income), net 1 725 3056
Share in profit of associated undertakings and joint ventures (355 117) (339 876)
(Increase)/decrease in receivables and prepayments 44 545 10 317
{Increase)fdecrease in inventories 107 004 {39 673)
Increase/{decrease) in trade and other payables (1% B34) {32 B53)
Cash flows from operating activities 156 643 (167 B36)

29, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Capital Expenditure Commitments

As at 31 December 2020, capital expenditure of EUR 10 401 thousand (31 December 2019: EUR 1 679
thousand) had been committed under contractual arrangements for the acquisition of non-current assels
but were not recognised in these consolidated financial statements.

Operating Lease Arrangements - the Group as a lessee

lhe Group leases means of transport under an operating lease agreement. The term of the frameawork
contract is until 31 December 2021, partial contracts have individual lerms of lease and the Group has
no option right to purchase the assets after the expiry of the lease term.

These notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

(in thousand EUR)

The Group also leases non-residential premises and land from third parties.

The carrying amounts of recognized assets from the right of use and movements during the period are
disclosed in Note 8.

The carrying amounts of recognized lease liabilities and movements during the period are disclosed in
Mote 17.

The amounts recognized In the income statement are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 584 538

Interest expense on lease liabilities 12 13
Expense relating to short-term leases L i
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets - -
Variable lease payments : _—
Total amount recognised in the income statement 596 551

Operating leases - the Group as a lessor

The Group lsases out non-residential premises (approx. 67.600 m?), land plots including external
carparks and movable assets, The annual lease revenues amount to approximately EUR 4 145 thousand
{in 2019: EUR 4425 thousand), Leased non-residential premises, land and movable assets are
recognised by the Group on the balance sheet as investment property.

As the lease contracts are mostly concluded for an indefinite period, the Group discloses the future
minimum repayments of non-cancellable lease receivables only for the following period:

: At 31 December At 31 December
Period 2020 2019

Within 1 year 4 458 4 376

Matural Gas Purchase

The majority of natural gas purchases was supplied from the Russian Federation in 2020. Natural gas
supplies were performed in line with a long-term agreement with Gazprom export LLC,

The natural gas purchase price from Gazprom export LLC is determined using the agreed price formula,
Gas and Electricity Sales Contracts

Composite natural gas and electricity supply contracts with small businesses and households define
products for which price lists are issued in accordance with the RONI's price decisions for the regulated
entity, SPP as a natural gas and electricity supplier.

The sale of natural gas and electricity to medium- and large-sized customers is the subject matter of
composite gas supply contracts or gas supply contracts, composite electricity supply contracts or
electricity supply contracts with an assumed liability for a deviation. The contracts are usually agreed for
ONE OF Maore years.,

The prices agreed in the contracts usually comprise capacity and commodity components. The price of
the distribution and other price components is determined based on RONI's price decisions for
distribution companies and the market and transmission system operator.

Provided Guarantees

The Group's guarantees represent a guarantee of SPP as the parent company for SPP CZ for the benefit
of third parties in the total amount of EUR 14 173 thousand as at 31 December 2020 (as at 31 December
2019: EUR 17 322 thousand). The amount of bank guarantees provided of the Group as at 31 December
2020 was EUR 7 000 thousand (as at 31 December 2019: EUR 2 200 thousand).

These notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements, 42
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MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

(in thousand EUR)

Significant Contractual Liabilities with Former Subsidiaries That Continue After the Completicn
of the SPP Group Reorganisation

After the completion of the SPP Group reorganisation, SPP continues to have significant contractual
liabilities due to the purchase of storage capacities with NAFTA, a.s., and in the purchase of distribution
and transport services from SPP - distribiicia, a.s. and eustream, a.s,

The Group stores natural gas in underground storage facilities operated by NAFTA, a.s. that are used for
depositing and extracting natural gas as per seasonal demand, and for securing the supply safety
standard as required by law. The storage fee is set in individual storage contracts.

The Group purchases transmission services and transmisslon capacities under ship or pay contracts
concluded with eustream, a.s. Fees and business terms in these contracts are fully regulated by the
RONI.

Fees for distribution services depend on the fixed and variable components and are also fully regulated
by the RONI,

Taxation

The Group has transactions with subsidiaries and associated undertakings and other related parties. The
tax environment in which the Group operates in Slovakia is dependent an the prevailing tax legislation
and practice and has relatively little existing precedents. There is an Inherent risk that the tax authorities
may require, for example, transfer pricing or other adjustments to the corporate income tax base.
Corporate income tax in Slovakia is levied on each individual legal entity and, as a consequence, there is
no concept of Group taxation or relief. The tax authorities in Slovakia have broad powers of
interpretation of tax laws, which, moreover, are often amended, which could result in unexpected results
from tax inspections.

Litigation and Potential Losses

The Group is involved in a number of legal disputes relating to disputed bills of exchange and alleged
breaches of contracts. In addition to the bills of exchange and disputes described below, the Group is
also involved in other litigation arising in the normal course of business that is not expected, either
individually or in the aggregate, to have a significant adverse effect on the accompanying financial
statements. The final outcome of such litigation may result in liabilities higher than the provisions
recognised.

Bills of exchange

SPP's management is aware of the existence of bills of exchange that were allegedly signed by the
former General Director of SPP prior to 1999, SPP announced publicly that it would repudiate the validity
of these bills of exchange slgned by the former General Director befoere the court, on the basis of the
suspicion that these bills are fraudulent and are in no way related to any contractual relations of SPP.

AL present, five (5) bills of exchange with principal totalling approx. EUR 14 million are at different stages
of legal proceedings at courts in the Slovak Republic. In another ten (10) cases related to bills of
exchange with principal amounting to apprex. EUR 169 million, a final and binding court decision was
adopted in favour of SPP.

The managermnent of SPP, following the advice of its legal counsel, defends the interests of the company
in these cases by all legitimate means available, SPP recorded a provision for potential losses related to
several bills of exchange. The amount of the provision has not been disclosed separately, as the
management of SPP believes that any such disclosure could seriously jeopardise the position of SPP in
the relevant litigation. These financial statements do not include any other provisions for poltential losses
related to the bills of exchange as the final outcome of the remaining cases is uncertain and cannot
currently be predicted.

Other litigations
SPP is a defendant in other legal cases and disputes.
The amounts of the provisions and other information relating te these individual legal cases and disputes

have not been disclosed separately as the management of SPP believes this could seriously jecpardise
the position of SPP in these disputes.

These notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. . 43
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(in thousand EUR)

Legislative Conditions for Business Activities in the Energy Sector

Legal and Regulatory Framework for the Natural Gas and Electricity Supply Market in the Slavak Republic
in compliance with Siovak Legisfation and European Union (MEU™) Legistation

Act Mo, 251/2012 Coll. on Energy and on Amendments to and Supplementation of Certain Acts (the
"Energy Act”) and Act MNo. 250/2012 Coll. on Regulation in MNetwork Industries (the “Act on
Regulation”) represent a basic legal framework for business in the energy sector.

Other generally binding legal regulations directly affecting the business activities of SPP include Act Mo,
321/2014 Z.z. on Energy Efficiency and on amendments to certain acts (the "Energy Efficiency Act”)
and Act no. 309/2009 2.z, on the promation of renewable energy sources and high-efficiency production
and on amendments to certain acts (the "RES Act"). The Energy Efficiency Act, among other things,
establishes a framework for rational use of energy, measures to promote and improve energy efficiency,
rights and obligations of persons in the field of energy efficiency and energy auditing, business in the
provision of energy services and introduces some new rules in providing information to end-users and
the monitoring system operator. The RES Act introduced a reform of the system of support for electricity
production from renewable energy sources and high-efficiency electricity and heat production and
introduced the institute of the buyer of electricity from these sources. With effect from 1 January 2020,
SPP became the buyer of electricity for the entire territory of the Slovak Republic, based on the results of
the auction announced by the Ministry of Economy of the Slovak Republic.

The European Green Convention and the adaptation of existing directives and regulations in the field of
enargy, internal gas market, environmental protection, climate change and air protection, or transport
will have a significant impact on the SPP's business in the future. The Integrated National Energy and
Climate Plan for 2021-2030 ("INECP") is the main energy and climate strategy document at the level of
the Slovak Republic. Along with INECP, the SPP's business activities will also be influenced by other
policies and strategies at the SR level (National Sustainable Development Strategy, Slovak
Environmental Policy Strategy up to 2030) as well as the setting up of the Recovery and Resilience and
EU resources Plan under the new multiannual budget for 2021-2027, of which a significant share should
be allocated to projects aimed at improving the environment,

5PP is a wholesale energy markel participant and is therefore obliged te comply with obligations arising
from Regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council No. 1227/2011 on the Wholesale Energy
Markel Integrity and Transparency ("REMIT"). The cbligations include compliance with the obligation to
disclose confidential information, prohibition of insider trading, prohibition of market manipulation and
the obligation to provide records of transactions on wholesale energy markets, including orders to trade,
te the Agency for Cooperation of Energy Regulators. Details related Lo data reporting are regulated by
Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No. 1348/2014. The new Regulation (EU) 2017/1938 of the
European Parliament and of the Council concerning measures to safeguard the security of gas supply
entered into force on 1 November 2017, The major changes include a greater application of the regional
principle, the extension of information obligations for utility companies regarding gas supply contracts
which may have an impact on safeguarding the security of gas supply, and the introduction of a solidarity
mechanism among EU Member States.

In addition to the above Eurcpean and national generally binding legal regulations, the legislative
conditions for businesses operating in the energy sector are also affected by legal regulations applicable
to the following areas: protection of personal data [{Regulation (EUY 2016/679 of the European
Parliament and of the Council on the protection of natural persons with regard to the processing of
personal data and on the free movement of such data ("GDPR"), Act No. 1B/2018 Coll. on Personal Data
Protection, Act Mo. 351/2011 Coll. on Electronic Communications), free access to information (Act No.
21172000 Coll. on Free Access to Information and on Amendment to and Supplementation of Cerlain
Acts) (the "Info Act”), conclusion of contracts in the public sector (Act Mo. 315/2016 Coll. on Register of
Public Sector Partners and on Amendment to and Supplementation of Certain Acts) (the "RPSP Act”),
consumer rights protection (Act Mo. 250/2007 Coll. on Consumer Protection) and trading on the financial
instruments market (MIFID II Directive 2014/65/EU) or Act Mo, 566/2001 Coll. on Securities and
Investment Services, Regulation (EU) 600/2014 on markets in financial instruments (MIFIR), Regulation
(EU) 596/2014 on market abuse, Directive 2014/57/EU on criminal sanctions for market abuse (CSMAD),
Regulation (EU) 648/2012 on OTC derivatives, central counterparties and trade repositories (EMIR)) and
also in the field of fighting against money laundering (Act Mo. 297/2008 Coll. on protection against
terrorist financing and on amendments Lo certain acts), or in the field of so called “Whistleblowing” (Act
MNo. 54/2019 Coll. on the protection of whistle-blowers of anti-social activities and on amendments to
certain acts).

These notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 44
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MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

(in thousand EUR)

Price Regulation

The basic framework in the price regulation of gas and electricity supplies is stipulated by the Act on
Regulation. 2017 was the first year of the new 2017 - 2021 regulation period. The regulation policy
published on 9 March 2016 extended, inter alia, the scope of price regulation for household gas supply.
In 2017, gas supplies to households, gas supplies to small businesses (with an annual consumption of up
to 100 thousand kWh/year), gas supplies to suppliers of last resort, electricity supplies to households,
electricity supplies to small businesses {with an annual consumption of up to 30 thousand kWh/year) and
heat production, distribution and supply continue to be subject to price regulation.

Price regulation in the above areas is governed by implementing legal regulations, namely RONI Decree
MNo. 223/2016 Coll. on price regulation in the gas industry, RONI Decree No. 248/2016 Coll. on price
regulation in the heat-power industry, Decree Mo, 260/2016 Coll. on price regulation In the electricity
sector and certain conditions regarding the conduct of regulated activities in the heat-power industry that
were replaced by RONI Decree No. 18/2017 Coll. in connection with the large increase in electricity
distribution prices for certain groups of customers.

On November 10, 2020, the RONI Regulatory Board adopted the amendment to the Regulatory Policy
2017 - 2021. The subject of the amendment is predominantly the extension of the regulatory period by
1 year, i.e. by the end of 2022. In accordance with the amendment, the ROMI should, ameng other
things, enforce the simplification of the submission of price proposals and also predict an analysis of the
possibility of cancellation, or reducing the scope of price regulation in the area of gas supply. In
accordance with the addendum, support for the use of biomethane in energy and transport has also been
added to the list of priorities of requlatory policy for the upcoming regulatory period In the gas industry.
Following the amendment, during the year 2021 the RONI should prepare proposals for amendments to
the decrees regulating the price regulation.

These notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 45
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Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

(in thousand EUR)

The compensation of the members of the bodies and executive management was as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Remuneration to members of the Board of Directors, Supervisory Board,
executive management and former members of the bodies - total 1 456 1142
OF which — Board of Directors and executive managemernt 1284 el
- Supervisory Board 172 182
Benefits after termination of employment to members of the Board of Directors,
Supervisory Board, executive management and former members of the bodies
- total
OFf which = Board of Directors and executive management - -
Other long-term benefits to members of the Board of Directors, Supervisory
Board, executive management and former members of the bodies - total - -
OF which - Board of Directors and executive managemernt - -
Benefits after termination of employment of members of the Board of Directors,
Supervisory Board, executive management and formear members of the bodies
- total = =
OFf which — Beard of Directors and executive management - 5
Other benefits to members of the Board of Directors, Supervisory Board,
execyutive management and former members of the bodies - total 49 42
Of which — Board of Directors and execulive management 49 42
- Supervisery Board £ -

31. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION TO COMPLY WITH OTHER STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS
FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a) Members of the company's Bodies

Body Function Name

Board of Chairman Ing. Milan Urban since 24 Juns 2020

Directors Chairman Ing, Jan Valko until 23 June 2020
Vice-Chairman Ing. Richard Prokypédak since 24 June 2020
Vice-Chairman Ing. Rudelf Slezdk until 23 June 2020
Member Mgr. Henrich Krejdi since 24 June 2020
Mernber Ing. Daniel Sulik, CSc. since 24 June 2020
Member Ing. Milan Hargas until 23 June 2020
Member Ing. Yan Szalay until 23 June 2020
Member Ing. Tvan Gransky

Supervisory Chairman Dr. h, ¢. Ing. Tibor Mikus, PhD.

Board Member Ing. Robert Maguth until 17 June 2020
Member Ing. Michal Durkovic
Member Viera Uhrova
Member Ing. Milad Dando
Mamber Mgr. Iveta Barancova since 11 September 2020
Member Morbert Lojko, MBA since 11 September 20020
Member JUDr, Martin Javorcek, MBA since 11 September 2020
Membear Mar. Peter Rakovsky since 11 September 2020
Member PhDr. Zuzana Ruiekova since 18 June 2020
Member WD, Matis Buéniak until 10 September 2020
Member JUGr, Peter Drac until 10 September 2020
Member Ing. Dionyz Kaszonyi until 10 September 2020

Executive Chief Executive Officer Ing. Richard Prokypcak since 10 August 2020;

entrusted with the performance of the function of
Chief Executive Officer since 30 June 2020 until 9

August 2020

Chief Executive Officer Ing. Stefan Sabilk until 29 June 2020
Director of the Business Development Division Ing. Juraj Mihal since 01 September 2020
Director of the Equity Management Division Myr. Peter Kudera since 01 September 2020
Director of Finance Division Ing, Miroslay Jankovit since 1 September 2020
Director of Corporate Matters Division Mgr. Tomas Miepel, LL.M, since 01 September 2020
Director of the Intemal Services Division Ing. Markusek Adrian since 01 October 2020
[irector of the Sales Division Ing. Miroslay Mital since 01 September 2020
Executive Director Ing. Richard Prokypéak until 09 August 2020

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements, 47
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Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

{in thousand EUR)

b} Consolidated Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2020, SPP submitted consolidated financial information as a consolidated reporting
entity for higher consolidation to the Ministry of Economy of the Slovak Republic based at Miynské nivy
ddfa, B27 15 Bratislava.

The ultimate reporting entity that consclidates the SPP Group as at 31 December 2020 is the Ministry of
Economy of the Slovak Republic.

SPP prepares consolidated financial statements for its group of companies. See Notes 5 and 7 for details
on these companies.

The conselidated and separate financial statements of SPP are published on SPP’s website www,spp.sk.

The consolidated and separate financial staterments of SPP published in periods before 31 December
2013 were published in the Commercial Journal and filed with the Commercial Register of Bratislava 1
District Court (Zdhradnicka 10, 811 07 Bratislava). The consolidated and separate financial statements of
SPP and its subsidiaries and associated companies in the period after 1 January 2014 are filed and
published with the Register of Financial Statements for entities based in the Slovak Republic and in the
Collection of Deeds (Sbirka listin) for entities based in the Czech Republic. The consolidated and separate
financial statements of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates for the periods until 31 December
2013 and of companies based outside the Slovak Republic are available at the relevant Courts of Records
in terms of their registered seats.

For more detalls on the consolidated and consolidating companies, refer to Notes 1, 5, and 7.

32. POST-BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Mo events occurred after 31 December 2020 that would have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

As at 26 November 2020, Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s. and CEZ Slovensko, s.r.o. have signed
Framework agreement on the sale of a part of an enterprise, where the subject is the takeover of an
independent, functionally and economically separate part of the enterprise CEZ Slovensko, s.r.o. focused
on the supply of electricity and natural gas, especially for businesses, municipalities and organizations.
As at 23 February 2021 The Antimenopoly Office of the Slovak Republic issued a decision approving the
concentration consisting of the acguisition of direct sole control of the company Slovensky plynarensky
priemysel, a.s. over the part of the company CEZ Slovensko, s.r.o.. The decision of the Antimonopoly
Office is effective from 24 February 2021.

As at 10 December 2020 the shareholder agreement between companies Slovensky plynarensky
priemysel, a.s., CEZ ESCO, a.s. and CEZ, a. s. has been signed, concerning the joint enterprise in the
market for the provision of energy services. As at 18 Decemnber 2020, the Antimonopoly Office approved
the establishment of the joint enterprise of SPP and CEZ with no exception. The decision is effective from
2 January 2021. The transaction was realized as at 1 February 2021 - this is also the date when the
general meeting of the joint enterprise took place. The General meeting decided to issue new shares,
which were subsequently subscribed by SPP.

Prepared on: Signature of a member of the Signature of the person .
statutory body of the reporting responsible for the S.lgn!:t:re:.i;g:: fp:_:.-rsan
10 March 2021 entity or a natugal person preparation of the ho";?rks e
acting as a repofting entity: financial statements: ping:
Approved on: F
Ing. Foltan Laszlo
Director of Accounting and
Taxes Department
These notes form an integral part of the consolidated ﬁnanc_lal statements, a8
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Proposal
for the distribution of SPP’s profit for the year 2020

The 2020 Profit Distribution Proposal has been prepared in accordance with the
Articles of Association of Slovensky plynarensky priemysel, a.s., Article XIX —
PROFIT DISTRIBUTION, Article XVIlIl - CREATION AND USE OF THE RESERVE
FUND, Article XX — CREATION OF OTHER FUNDS, and in accordance with the
provisions of the Commercial Code.

The 2020 Profit Distribution Proposal is based on the audited 2020 Individual
Financial Statements and is consistent with the medium-term dividend pay-out plan
approved by the sole shareholder.

Iv.

Net profit €259 079 534.09

Replenishment of statutory reserve fund € 0.00
pursuant to Article XVIII of the Articles of Association, the reserve fund
has reached the 20% share capital limit

Net profit

allocated for dividends €250 000 000.00
Transfer to retained earnings €9 079 534.09
Royalties to members of company bodies €0.00

The dividend shall be paid out to the shareholder within 300 days of the adoption of
the sole shareholder’'s decision on the distribution of the company’s profit for 2020.



	1E
	2E
	3E

